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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:59 PM
Subject: Fwd: Administrative Leave

>>> James Calvin 6/27/2007 11:32 AM >>>
Jerry:

As a follow up to your concerns about the impact of administrative leave, I think
the following issues are ones that play a role in what decisions need to be made.,
They are clearly not the whote story, but are items that deserve consideration;

1) The CDC order places a cease and desist order on aerosolization research, but
not on any specific PI who may be engaged in research ocutside this area, Thus,
without the teave, a PI could still be active in the lab if grants existed to support
non-restricted research.

2) Administrative leave, if too fong, can put the PI in jeopardy of losing grant funding,
either through direct non-performance or through an inability to obtain grant renewals,

3) The leave alsoc impacts any students who are supported and/or advised by the PL

If students leave the lab then, again, the completion of research becomes more difficuit.
If they do not then their graduation timetable is put at risk. This also assumes that labs
exist that can and will take on new students.

4) There is also the potential for reputational risk if the leave appears to have no end or
it is not clear how it will be resolved,

In the end, I think the issue really revolves around how quickly any investigation can be
completed, Please let me know if I can provide you with any additional information.

Jim
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:59 PM

Subject: Fwd: FW: CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT COUNSEL COMMUNICATION

>>> "Strawser, Jerry R" <jstrawser@tamu.edu> 6/27/2007 11:59 AM >>>
As I read this, I have a few questions that I would appreciate you
responding to:

1. When did the investigation that Karan refers to in
the first paragraph begin?

2. Are there bases for concetn regarding ongoing
practices in the lab (question [2])?

3, Who are the "other administrators" referred to in
her question (3)?

4, Is Karan's statement about the one error correct?

Jerry

Jerry Strawser | Interim Executive Vice President and Provost

Texas A&M University | 979.845.4016 | jstrawser@tamu.edu
<BLOCKED: :mailto:jstrawser@tamu.edu>

From: Watson, Karan

Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2007 9:16 AM

To: Kelly, Scott; Adams, Richard; Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J;
Strawser, Jerry R

C¢: Raines, Angelia

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT COUNSEL COMMUNICATION

Based on what I have been told, I do not approve the extension of
Ficht's administrative leave.

I'was led to believe there was an investigation in progress in May, and
that imminent discussions with lab personnel warranted placing the
facuity member on leave for this phase of the process. I was not then,
or now, Informed of a basis for concern of ongoing practices in this
lab, but instead led to believe that our need to get uninhibited
communications from the personnel would be valuable to all, including
the faculty member. Now I learn that the investigation was not even
initiated yet,



1. Please let me know the basis for placing someone on leave while we
negotiate a contract.

2. T have not been informed of our concerns about ongoing practices by
this faculty member or imminent safety concerns, please let me know what
information we have to substantiate this type of concern.

3. What I have been told is that other administrators, who arguably but
by the information posted in our procedures, had responsibilities to
report mishaps to the CDC, did not do their job. Have any of these
people been placed on administrative jeave?

The sense I am left with based on the information you have given me thus
far, is that Dr. Ficht appears to be singled out in a manner that others
have not been for a potential investigation. I understand that his lab
was where the accident cecured which ultimatley led to our current
investigation by the CDC, but I was told that the lab followed
appropriate procedures upon the occurance of the accident. The
information I was given was that the one error, other than the actual
procedure in cleaning equipment with a particular agent in it, was how
the incident was reported to the CDC, Now it appears that this
information may not be the case, so I am seeking clarity to understand
if I have been misinformed about the lab and the procedures they
followed,

Karan

From: Kelly, Scott

Sent: Tue 6/26/2007 3:13 PM

To: Watson, Karan; Adams, Richard; Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J;
Strawser, Jerry R

Cc: Raines, Angelia

Subject: RE: Memo from Dean Adams

The outside counsel contract with Vickie Sutton is being completed. We
sent her alt of the annual CDC reviews for her review. I have asked
though Angie Raines for copies of Dr. Ficht's lab books, but I have not
received those vet.

Scott Kelly

From: Watson, Karan
Sent: Tuesday, June 26, 2007 3:10 PM

_ Page2’
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To: Adams, Richard; Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J; Strawser,
Jerry R; Kelly, Scott
Subject: RE: Memo from Dean Adams

Please inform me what is being done and by whom. As of last week
it was reported to me that after 3 weeks into the administrative leave,
Dr. Ficht had not been approached by anyone on the investigation,
Extending this leave has serious impact on his currently funded
experiment. Please tell me what is the basis and finding for keeping
this leave, and who else involved in the alleged missteps have been put
on feave during the investigation. Karan

From: Richard Adams [mailto:RAdams@cvm,tamu.edy)

Sent: Tue 6/26/2007 2:27 PM

To: Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J; Strawser, Jerry R; Kelly,
Scolt; Watson, Karan

Subject: Fwd: Memo from Dean Adams

>>> Martha Huebner 6/26/2007 2:15 PM >>>
Dear Dr, Ficht,

Please see attached mema from Dean Adams. The original is being
sent to you,

Thank you,

Martha
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:59 PM

Subject: Fwd: Re: FW: CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT COUNSEL COMMUNICATION

>>> James Calvin 6/27/2007 1:16 PM »>>>
Jerry:

I am getting exact dates for you for tomorrow's meeting, but here is
probably what you are looking for,

1) There have been two outside reviews. The first invoived a group from UT-
Houston HSC. We have received some preliminary findings on improvements in
oversight that are being implemented. One resuit of this review is the hiring of

a new biosafety officer who will report jointly to OVPR and EH&S. ! believe that

the second review is the one Karan is referring to. The Chancellor identified Dr.
Vickie Sutton, from TTU, as someone wheo shouid lead a review. Dr. Sutton came
down for a visit in May, but the process of engaging her has been detayed due to

an issue in initiating her contract. During the visit, she request some material, which
has all been provided to Scott Kelly. The request for lab books is more recent and,

I believe that it is still being worked on.

2} I do not befteve that concerns exist about ongoing practices other than ensuring
that Dr. Ficht receives approval for his revised protocols. The focus of the review

is on past actions. As a result of established expectations with CDC, we have initiated
and completed a new training process for alf researchers using select agents. Neariy
all users attend one of the course times. 1 believe that approximately 23 people did
not. They have now been excluded from access to the affected labs untii they have
completed

the training.

3} I believe that Karan is referring to individuals within EH&S.

4) The CDC report had 21 observations, but in refation to Dr. Ficht's actions they
basically get boiled down to two issues. The first is that someone was exposed in his
fab. The second is that the amended protocol to use aerosolization had not been
approved by CDC.

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

2. Are there bases for concern regarding ongoing
practices in the lab {(question [2])?

3. Who are the "other administrators” referred to in
her question (3)?

4, Is Karan's statement about the one error correct?

Jerry
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Jerry Strawser | Interim Executive Vice President and Provost

Texas ABM University | 979.845.4016 | jstrawser@tamu.edu
<BLOCKED: :mailto:istrawser @tamu.edy>

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
Ficht's administrative feave.

I was led to believe there was an investigation in progress in May, and
that imminent discussions with lab personnel warranted placing the
faculty member on leave for this phase of the process, I was not then,
or now, informed of a basis for concern of ongeing practices in this
lab, but instead led to believe that our need to get uninhibited
communications from the personnel would be valuable to all, including
the faculty member. Now I fearn that the investigation was not even
initiated yet,

1. Please let me know the basis for placing someone on leave while we
negotiate a contract.

2. T have not been informed of our concerns about ongolng practices by
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
report mishaps to the CDC, did not do their job, Have any of these
people been placed on administrative leave?

The sense T am left with based on the information you have given me thus
far, is that Dr, Ficht appears to be singled out in @ manner that others
have not been for a potential investigation. I understand that his lab
was where the accident occured which uitimatley led to our current
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
the incident was reported to the CDC. Now it appears that this
information may not be the case, so I am seeking clarity to understand
if I have been misinformed about the lab and the procedures they
followed.

Karan
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From: Kelly, Scott

Sent: Tue 6/26/2007 3:13 PM

To: Watson, Karan; Adams, Richard; Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie 1;
Strawser, Jerry R

Cc: Raines, Angelia

Subject: RE: Memo from Dean Adams

The outside counsel contract with Vickie Sutton is being completed. We
sent her all of the annual CDC reviews for her review. I have asked
though Angie Raines for copies of Dr, Ficht's lab books, but I have not
received those yet,

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
Dr. Ficht had not been approached by anyone on the investigation.
Extending this leave has serious impact on his currently funded
experiment. Please tell me what is the basis and finding for keeping
this leave, and who else involved in the alleged missteps have baen put
on leave during the investigation. Karan

From: Richard Adams [mailto:RAdams@cvm.tamu.edu}

Sent: Tue 6/26/2007 2:27 PM

To: Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J; Strawser, Jerry R; Kelly,
Scott; Watson, Karan

Subject: Fwd: Memo from Dean Adams

>>> Martha Huebner 6/26/2007 2:15 PM >>>
Dear Dr. Ficht,

Please see attached memo from Dean Adams. The original is being
sent to you,

Thank you,

Martha
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From:

To:

Date:
Subject:
Attachments:

>>> "Angelia Raines” <araines@vpr-mailsrv] tamu.edu> 6/28/2007 6:32 AM >»>

James Calvin

Calvin, James

7/5/2007 2:59 PM

Fwd: Confidential Draft - for review and input
Confidential Draft - discussion outline.doc

Confidential Draft - Please review and igive input,

Thanks! Angie



Draft — Discussion Outline
General Background - Roles

Responsible Official (RO)/Institutional Official (10) - is Richard Ewing.
* designated by Texas A&M to have management and oversight of the Select Agent
Program. The RO must have authority and control to ensure compliance with the
regulations,

Environmental Health and Safety

e Reports to Risk Management

*  Responsible for environmental, occupational and radiation safety programs.

» The Biosafety Officer, who resides in EHSD, is responsible for ensuring lab practices are
safe and followed correctly; that regulatory requirements are followed; that safety
assessments are in compliance with requirements set forth in CDC’s Bio... (BMBL).
The BSO is a member of the IBC, and reviews all Select Agent Applications and has
oversight for all select agent transfers. The BSO is one of 4 Alternate Responsible
Officials (ARO), designated by the RO to assume some of the management
responsibilities of the Select Agent program,

Office of Research Compliance (ORC)-

s Reports to the Vice President for Research through the Associate VP for Research.
Provides operational/administrative management for select Agent programs.

* Provides administrative support to the IBC, who is responsible for reviewing and
approving Select Agent applications and changes to applications.

*  Works with Environmental Health and Safety and the BSO to ensure regulatory
compliance of the Select Agent program. The ORC director is one of 4 Alternate
Responsible Officials (ARO), designated by the RO to assume some of the management
responsibilities of the Select Agent program. The Director communicates directly to the
RO or through the Associate VP on select Agent matters.

Comparative Medicine (CMP) —

* Reports to the Vice President for Research through the Exccutive Associate VI for
Research.

*  Provides animal care and animal housing for Select Agent Investigators.
Provides veterinary expertise to the IBC, who is responsible for reviewing and approving
Select Agent applications and changes to applications.

*  Works with Environmental Health and Safety and the BSO to ensure labs are safe and
meet the regulatory requirements for Select Agents.

Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) —

* Review, approve, and oversee all teaching, testing, and research projects involving
recombinant DNA, infectious agents, and toxins.

* Responsible for the review and approval of Select Agent applications or changes in
applications.



CDC Reporting and investigation process:

Reporting Process: Texas A&M is responsible for reporting all registration changes, or incidents
(loss, theft or release, including occupational exposures). Incident reports must occur
immediately.
Investigation process involved:
¢ Request for information (4/11/07)
e Site visit (4/16/07-4/19/07)
® Cease and desist of all aerosol studies using select agents
¢ Additional request for information noting multiple observations and included three
distinct issues
o 4/3/06 release (occupational exposure — reported 4/17/07
* Incident involved elevated Q-fever titers in 3 Select Agent Personnel —
Pl Samuel’s Coxiella Lab. Elevated titers were noted in April 2006,
when Texas A&M did not consider titers without clinical symptoms to
be a release. Reviewed the policy in April 07 and decided to include all
elevated titers. Reported previous titers to CDC.
o 4/20/06 incident Reported to CDC 4/10/07
* Incident involved a lab visitor who was exposed to a select agent in PJ
Ficht Brucella study in the Aerosol lab. CDC asked about Aerosol
incident with specific questions related to protocol review and
monitoring, occupational safety, training and reporting.
o 12/22/06 loss— Reported to CDC 12/22/06
* Incident involved a missing mouse in the P1 Samue!’s Coxiella Lab.

Next Steps:
e Notification of deficiencies
» Penalty

Possible Penalties:
* Restriction of aerosol studies at Texas A&M until deficiencies are resolved.
¢ Restriction/suspension of all select agent research until deficiencies are resolved
(registration suspension),
e Civil penalties:
o Up to $250,000 for an individual for each violation
o Up to $500,000 for an organization for each violation
e Criminal penalties, which are very unlikely:
o Imprisonment for up to 5 years, a fine, or both for:
o Transfer of a select agent to an unregistered person
o Possession of a select agent by an unregistered person
o Knowingly making a false statement

Actions taken or to be taken to satisfy CDC and ensure compliance:
* Training - 3 sessions held in June — with the exception of 7 individuals, all Select Agent
personnel have been trained.
o  UT HSC visit
o New Biosafety Officer proposed as a result of their input
* TTU contract



Response to Media

Current press is a related to 4/3/06 elevated Q-fever titers. Information was released as part of the
initiating event (aerosol incident) open records request
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 3:00 PM

Subject: Fwd: Re: Confidential Draft - for review and input

Attachments: Confidential Draft - discussion outline 062807.doc

>>> "Fuller Bazer" <FBazer@cvm.tamu.edu> 6/28/2007 7:12 AM >>>
Thanks Angie. This looks good. I have made a few edits for consideration by youand Jim. I will be happy to have a
look at subsequent drafts.  Fuller

Fuller W. Bazer, Ph.D., Regents Fellow, Distinguished Professor and 0.D. Butler Chair in Animal Science
Associate Vice President for Research

Texas A&M University

Telephone: 979-458-2876

Cell Phone: 979-324-7364

Facsimile: 979-845-1855

email: fbazer@cvm.tamu.edu

URL: http://recovery tamu.edu
URL: http://animalscience.tamu.eduy/

>>> "Angelia Raines” <araines@vprmail.tamu.edu> 06/28/07 6:32 AM >>>
Confidentiatl Draft - Please review and igive input.

Thanks! Angie



Draft — Discussion Qutline
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
regulations.

»...Responsible Official status also includes animal care and use, human subjects research <+ [ Formatted: Buliets and Numbering ]
and all aspects of institutional biosalety

Environmental Health and Safety (EHS[)

¢ Reports to Risk Management

*  Responsible for environmental, occupational and radiation safety programs.

s The Biosafety Officer (B8O, who resides in EHSD, is responsible for ensuring lab
practices are safe and followed correctly; that regulatory requirements arc followed; that
safety assessments are in compliance with requirements set forth in CDC’s Bio. ..
(BMBL). The BSO is a member of the IBC, and reviews all Select Agent Applications
and has oversight for all select agent transfers, The BSO is one of 4 Alternate
Responsible Officials (ARO}, designated by the RO 1o assume some of the management
responsibilities of the Select Agent program.

Office of Research Compliance (ORC)-

* Reports to the Vice President for Research through the Associate VP for Research.
Provides operational/administrative management for select Agent programs.
* Provides administrative support to the IBC (Institwtional Biosatety Commities), thatjs . { Deteted: who ]
responsible for reviewing and approving Select Agent applications and changes to
applications.
¢ Works with Environmental Health and Safety and the BSO to ensure regulatory
compliance of the Select Agent program. The ORC director is one of 4 Alternate
Responsible Ofticials (ARO), designated by the RO to assume some of the management
responsibilities of the Select Agent program. The Director communicates directly to the
RO or through the Associate VP on select Agent matters,

Comparative Medicine (CMP) —

* Reports to the Vice President for Research through the Executive Associate VP for
Research.
Provides animal care and animat housing for Select Agent Investigators.
Provides veterinary expertisc to the IBC, who is responsible for reviewing and approving
Select Agent applications and changes o applications.

e Works with Environmental Health and Safety and the BSO to ensure labs are safe and
meet the regulatory requirements for Select Agents,

Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) -



-

* Review, approve, and oversee all teaching, testing, and research projects involving .- i Formatted: Font: Times New

recombinant DNA, infectious agents, and toxins. | Roman, 11 pt

* Responsible for the review and approval of Select Agent applications or changes in
applications.

CDC Reporting and investigation process:

| Reporting Process: With respect to research with sclect agents, Texas A&M is responsible for
reporting all registration changes, or incidents (loss, theft or retease, including occupational

| exposures). Incident reports must be filed immediately, [ Deleted: occur

Investigation process involved:

* Request for information (4/11/07)

*  Site visit (4/16/07-4/19/07)

® Cease and desist of all aerosol studies using select agents

¢ Additional request for information noting multiple observations and included three

distinct issues —
o 4/3/06 release (occupational exposure - reported 4/17/07
* Incident involved elevated Q-fever titers in 3 Select Agent Personnel —

PI Samwel’s Coxiella Lab. Elevated titers were noted in April 2006,
when Texas A&M did not consider titers without clinical symptoms to

be a release. Reviewed the policy in April 07, decided to include all . { Defeted: and
elevated titers, and reported those previous titers to CDC. { beleted: . &

o 4/20/06 incident Reported to CDC 4/10/07
* Incident involved a lab visitor who was exposed to a select agent in PI
| Ficht’s Brucella study in the Aerosol lab. CDC asked about Aerosol
incident with specific questions related to protocol review and
monitoring, occupational safety, training and reporting.
! o 12/22/06 loss of mouse in select agent study— Reported to CDC 12/22/06
= Incident involved a missing mouse in the PI Samuel’s Coxiella Lab.

Next Steps:
¢ Notification of deficiencies
* Penalty

Possible Penalties:
* Restriction of aerosel studies at Texas A&M until deficiencies are resolved.
¢ Restriction/suspension of all select agent research until deficiencics are resolved
(registration suspension).
¢  Civil penalties:
o Upto $250,000 for an individual for each viofation
o Up to $500,000 for an organization for each violation
¢  Criminal penalties, which are very unlikely:
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



¢ Training - 3 sessions held in June — with the exception of 7 individuals, all Select Agent
personnel have been trained.
o  UT HSC visit
o New Biosafety Officer proposed as a result of their input
»  TTU coniract

Response to Media

» _ Current press is a related to 4/3/06 elevated Q-fever titers. Information was released as< - | Formatted: Bullets and Numbering ]

\
part of the initiating event (acrosol incident) open records request
s Office of Vice President for Research has Communications Section that interfaces with
ORC to provide input to Texas A&M officials (o inform and allow {actual information to
be shared with media
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 3:00 PM

Subject: Please review Fwd: RE: CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT COUNSEL COMMUNICATION

Attachments: RE: CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT COUNSEL COMMUNICATION

>>> "Angelia Raines" <araines@vpr-mailsrvi.tamu.edu> 6/28/2007 7:48 AM >>>
Confidential - for review and input
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From: “Richard Adams" <RAdams@cvm.tamu.edu>
To: "Gerald Bratton" <GBRATTON@cvm.tamu.edu>, "Eddie J Davis" <gdavis@tamu.e...
Date: 6/27/2007 11.48 AM
Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL CLIENT COUNSEL COMMUNICATION
CcC: "Angelia Raines" <araines@vprmail.tamu.edu>
Dr. Watson:

It is my understanding that when the outside investigation began, there was a request for the outside
investigator to receive all lab information dealing with the lab's work associated with the incident. It is also
my understanding that the related lab notebooks have only now been made available to the investigator,
At the time of the first leave letter, it was assumed that 30 days would have been adequate fo conclude
the investigation. But, unti! the notebooks were available, the investigation could not be concluded. it
seemed practical to have the leave time undefined in the second letter while the university awaited the
results of the outside investigation so that repeat letters would be unnecessary.

I too have heard the same information about failure of a campus office to report the incident to federal
authorities, and that our faculty did indeed file the appropriate report of the incident with that campus office
in a timely manner. However, because | have no responsibility for any university staff outside the CVM, |
have no authority to deliver a message of leave with pay to any one outside the CVM.

| expect the outside investigation to surely determine exactly the question you raise. That is, did CVM
facuity follow all reporting procedures as federal law requires. And, was the fault instead because a
campus office neglected to inform federal authorities of the incident report. That is a critical distinction that
must be answered by the outside investigation. [f it is not being addressed, then the outside investigator
did not receive the full charge necessary to conclude the investigation in a fair and open manner.

Moreover, it is my understand that the involved faculty has yet to be interviewed by the outside
investigator. ! can not understand how an outside investigation could reach a confident conclusion without
an interview of the involved faculty.

| will be the first to offer my regrets to the involved faculty if the incident was caused not by him, but
instead only because a campus and/or System office failed to forward the report of the incident to federal
authorities, believe me. In the mean time, | believe | am following the appropriate procedures that stand
before us relative to federal law and university/System policy. If | am incorrectly discharging my
responsibility as dean, then { certainly request correction from my supervisors.

I'have avoided any investigative action myself, because as dean | may be called upon to participate
in my facuity's appeal of the leave that was issued to him. The appeal process should allow us to resoive
any misunderstandings and incompletions that may surround this incident.

Please let me know if additional information would be helpful.

Richard

>>>"Watson, Karan" <watson@tamu.edu> 6/27/2007 9:15 AM >>>
Based on what | have been told, | do not approve the extension of Ficht's administrative leave.

I was led to believe there was an investigation in progress in May, and that imminent discussions with lab
personnel warranted placing the faculty member on leave for this phase of the process. | was not then, or
now, informed of a basis for concern of ongoing practices in this lab, but instead led to believe that our
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need to get uninhibited communications from the personnel would be valuable to all, including the faculty
member. Now | learn that the investigation was not even initiated yet.

1. Please let me know the basis for placing someone on leave while we negotiate a contract.

2. I have not been informed of our concerns about ongoing practices by this faculty member or imminent
safety concerns, please let me know what information we have to substantiate this type of concern.

3. What | have been told is that other administrators, who arguably but by the information posted in our
procedures, had responsibilities to report mishaps to the CDC, did not do their job. Have any of these
people been placed on administrative leave?

The sense | am left with based on the information you have given me thus far, is that Dr. Ficht appears to
be singled out in a manner that others have not been for a potential investigation. | understand that his lab
was where the accident occured which ultimatley led to our current investigation by the CDC, but | was
told that the lab followed appropriate procedures upon the occurance of the accident. The information |
was given was that the one error, other than the actual procedure in cleaning equipment with a particular
agent in it, was how the incident was reported to the CDC. Now it appears that this information may not be
the case, so | am seeking clarity to understand if | have been misinformed about the lab and the
procedures they followed.

Karan

From; Kelly, Scott

Sent: Tue 6/26/2007 3:13 PM

To: Watson, Karan; Adams, Richard; Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J; Strawser, Jerry R
Cc: Raines, Angelia

Subject: RE: Memo from Dean Adams

The outside counsel contract with Vickie Sutton is being completed. We sent her all of the annual CDC
reviews for her review. | have asked though Angie Raines for copies of Dr. Ficht's lab books, but | have
not received those yet,

Scott Kelly

From: Watson, Karan

Sent: Tuesday, June 26, 2007 3:10 PM

To: Adams, Richard; Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J; Strawser, Jerry R; Kelly, Scott
Subject: RE: Memo from Dean Adams

Please inform me what is being done and by whom. As of last week it was reported to
me that after 3 weeks into the administrative leave, Dr. Ficht had not been approached by anyone on the
investigation. Extending this leave has serious impact on his currently funded experiment. Please tell me
what is the basis and finding for keeping this leave, and who else involved in the alleged missteps have
been put on leave during the investigation. Karan

From: Richard Adams [mailto:RAdams@cvm.tamu.edu]
Sent, Tue 6/26/2007 2:27 PM
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To: Gerald Bratton; Davis, Eddie J; Strawser, Jerry R; Kelly, Scott; Watson, Karan
Subject: Fwd: Memo from Dean Adams

>>> Martha Huebner 6/26/2007 2:15 PM >>>
Dear Dr. Ficht,

Please see attached memo from Dean Adams. The original is being sent to you.
Thank you,

Martha
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:33 PM

Subject: Fwd: Re: Texas A&M Brucella Exposure Incident

Attachments: Incident at TAMU

=>>> Richard Ewing 4/16/2007 5:39 PM >>>
This is the response that Neville Clarke sent to DHS about the incident and included David’s announcement.
Dick

Dr. Richard E. Ewing

Vice President for Research
Texas A&M University

1112 TAMU

College Station, TX 77843-1112
Phone: (979) 845-8585

FAX: (979) 845-1855

E-mail: richard-ewing@tamu.edu

»>> "Neville Clarke" <n-clarke@tamu.edu> 4/16/2007 5:27 pm >>>
Matt,

This will acknowledge receipt of your message. 1 am forwarding it to appropriate authorities in the University at their instruction to
all who are asked to provide information, CDC is on site at this time and reviewing the incident and pursuing most if not all the
questions you pose. We expect we will have their findings in a few days. T am not privy to all the information you have requested
and will not see it mysalf unti! the CDC report is received and the university responds. I believe 1 should have their report before
responding to you. In fact, it seems to me their report is what you need. If this is not agreeable, I can either discuss options by
phone with you or come to your office We would like to comply with your direction but also want to comply with our own university
guidance. T am attaching the statement made by the university this merning and sent to you earlier in the day,

I realize that your office wants to be able to respond if this situation gains high visibility. Unless you think otherwise, T advise that if
necessary, you respond in the interim as we are doing by saying that you are waiting for the CDC Report I can confirm that the
incident is refated to a project funded in part in the Center on which progress has been very good. Please advise.,

Neville
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From:

To:

Date:
Subject:
Attachments:

James Calvin

Calvin, James

7/5/2007 3.00 PM

Fwd: CDC Cease and Desist Order

DSAT Expansion of Order to Cease & Desist.doc

>>> Richard Ewing 7/1/2007 5:39 PM >>>
As you can see in the attached memorandum, the Department of Sefect Agents and Toxins (DSAT) has expanded the cease
and desist order, originally issued April 20, 2007, to include all work with select agents and toxing at TAMU. Effective immediately,

all select agent and toxin

Richard Ewing

Responsible Officer

Dr. Richard E. Ewing

work must stop and all select agents and toxins must be securely stored until further notice.

Vice President for Research

Texas A&M University

1112 TAMU

College Station, TX 77843-1112

Phone: {979) 845-8585
FAX: (979) 845-1855

E-mail: richard-ewing@tamu.edu




June 30, 2007

MEMORANDUM

FROM: Dr. Richard E. Ewing

TO: Al employees involved in research with Select Biological Agents and
Toxins

SUBJECT: Cease and Desist Order from Violations of the Public Health

Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002
(42 US.C, 262a)

As of today, June 30, 2007, the Department of Select Agents and Toxins (DSAT) has
expanded the cease and desist order, originally issued April 20, 2007, to include all work
with select agents and toxins at TAMU. Effective immediately, al] select agent and toxin
work must stop and all select agents and toxins must be securely stored until further
notice,

As you are aware, the original cease and desist order issued by the Department of Select
Agents of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) covered the following:

1. The use of Room Building Texas A&M University, for any and all
manipulations and storage of Brucella abortus, Brucella melitensis, and Brucella
suis until such time as a request for the amendment to the Texas A&M
University’s certificate of registration has been properly submitted by the Texas
A&M University and approved by the Division of Select Agents and Toxins
(DSAT), Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) in accordance with
42 C.E.R. part 73,

2. The experimental aerosolization of any select agent or toxin performed at the
Texas A&M University.

3. Allowing access to select agents and toxins by any individual who has not been
approved for such access by DSAT following a security risk assessment by the
Attorney General of the United States.

While the order has now been expanded to cover work with all select agents on the
campus of Texas A&M, effective immediately, all select agent and toxin work must stop
and all select agents and toxins must be securely stored until further notice.

c¢: Dr. Michael D. McKinney
Dr. Eddie J. Davis
Dr. Jerry R. Strawser
Dr. David Carlson
Dr. James A. Calvin
Dr, Fuller W. Bazer



Mr. Chris M. Meyers
Mr, Charley B. Clark
Mr. John M. Salsman
Ms. Angelia M. Raines
Mr. Brent S. Mattox
Dr. Vernon L. Tesh
Dr, Thomas A. Ficht
Dr. L. Garry Adams
Dr. James E. Samuel
Ms. Tiffany M. Agnew
IBC
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 3:00 PM

Subject: Fwd: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Review

>>> "President" <g-carroll@tamu.edu> 7/2/2G07 4:06 PM >>>

2 July 2007

MEMORANDUM

TO: Texas A&M Facuity & Staff

SUBJECT: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
Review

As you may already be aware, the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) notified us over the weekend that we must suspend our
homeland security-related research with selected agents and toxins
pending the outcome of another site visit by CDC representatives. That
next visit is scheduled later this month--in the July 9-23 timeframe.

The CDC notification stems from safety and reporting considerations.
First, let me make the point that the cited incidents at Texas A&M
University did not pose a continuing threat to anyone on or off our
campus. The first incident, an exposure to Brucella, was the

University's error in not reporting the exposure in a timely manner.

The more recently reported exposure was simply due to the fact that we
have initiated more stringent testing and reporting criteria than in

prior periods and than is the norm at other similar research

facilities. In fact, none of the individuals with the latest reported
elevated blood tests (a reading known as a titer) became ill from that
exposure. This is generally the standard at other select agent research
facilities used in determining whether to report an exposure to the

CDC. In our case, we are exceeding that standard. Safety is always of
paramount importance when anyone on campus--be they faculty, staff or
students-- who handles or otherwise deals with materials that are
hazardous or even potentially hazardous, Nothing--absolutely nothing--is
more impottant than safeguarding the health of our personnel,

We are unequivocally committed to taking all appropriate steps to

ensure we are in full compliance with all CDC and any other relevant
policies and regulations. In fact, we have already strengthened our
safety, training and reporting procedures. In addition, we are

retaining the services of an independent expert and the environmental
health and safety group from the UT Health Science Center in Houston to
provide their views on how we can most expeditiously redeploy a fully
compliant select agent research program. This action, in coordination
with further discussion with CDC, will form the basis for our action

plan going forward,

In summary, we plan to cooperate fully with the CDC and look forward to
resolving this matter in an appropriate manner as quickly as possible

50 that we can move forward in our work supporting the nation's
homeland security initiatives, Texas A&M is among the world's leading
research institutions with a long history of producing solid resuits

that help mankind in many different ways, This is apparent day in and



| (7/5/2007) James Calvin - Fwd: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Review  Page2

day out in disciplines all across this campus and state. Qur goal is to
ensure that our select agent research continues to be recognized at
that same high standard.

Eddie J. Davis
Interim President
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From: "Neville Clarke" <n-clarke@tamu.edu>

To: “Neil <CTR> Franz" <Neil.Franz@associates.dhs.gov>, "Matthew Clark” <Mat...
Date: 4/16/2007 11:57 AM

Subject: Incident at TAMU

CC: "Thomas Powdrill" <TFPowdrill@ag.tamu.edu>, "Rusty Cawley" <RCawley@vprm...

The following is a statement issued by Texas A&M*s Executive Vice
President and Provost David B. Prior on April 16, 2007:

"An internal investigation has confirmed that an occupational exposure

to the bacterium that causes brucellosis occurred on our campus and that
the individual was successfully treated. We have since strengthened our
safety, training and reporting procedures following the human error
involved in not reporting this incident.

An independent review of our processes and procedures will be conducted
by representatives of the Center for Disease Control (CDC), who are on
campus today (Monday, April 16). We will be fully cooperative and our
goal is o comply with all current biosafety standards.

No university officials will make further comments regarding this
incident until our final internal report is issued following the CDC
review.*
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:54 PM

Subject: Fwd: Texas A&M Brucella Exposure Incident

>>> Richard Ewing 4/17/2007 7:48 AM >>>
All,
I don't want to defocus anyone from the ongoing CDC visit, but wanted to let everyone know we are also being asked questions
by DHS since the experiment was funded by DHS through FAZD.
Dick

Dr. Richard E. Ewing

Vice President for Research
Texas A&M University

1112 TAMU

College Station, TX 77843-1112
Phone: (979) 845-8585

FAX: (979) 845-1855

E-mail; richard-ewing@tamu.edu

>>> "Clark, Matthew" <Matthew.Clarkl@dhs.qov> 04/16/07 1:38 PM >>>
Neville,

As a follow-up to our phone call of Friday night, in which you notified

me of a Brucella exposure incident at Texas A&M, DHS needs more
infarmation to evaluate (1) the nature of the Brucella exposure

incident, {2) the oversight of the Texas A&M select agent program, (3)
the personnel changes that were implicated in the failure to report, and
(4) any additional measures that have been taken or may be warranted to
resolve the issue and ensure future compliance.

Piease provide detailed written answers to the following questions:

* When exactly did the incident occur and when was it reported to
¢cDe?
* Who at Texas A&M is now coerdinating with CDC in addressing

noncompliance issue resulting from the failure to report? What guidance
and oversight is CDC now providing on follow-up federal compliance
measures that need to be taken? Has the CDC assessed any penalties?

* What personnel and procedura actions is Texas A&M taking to
remedy the situation?
* Who was the RO named on the registration at the time of the

incident? Was this individual involved in the "personnel changes" that
led to the failure to repoit? Who is the current RO on the University's
registration? Please provide copies of the current Certificate of
Registration and that held at the time of the incident to DHS for review
and record keeping.

* The incident presumably involved one of the Brucella species
(abortus, melitensis, or suis) that are listed as a CDC/APHIS overiap
select agent,

* iid Texas A&M notify USDA-APHIS of the incident and submit Form
3 -- used to report theft, loss, or release of a select agent -- within

7 days? Note: The occupational exposure at Texas A&M would be considered
a "release" based on the broader definition indicated on the form. Have
both CDC and APHIS been involved in the noncompliance response?

* Was the laboratory work associated with the incident being
conducted under the DHS grant through the COE? Was the work being
conducted as it was described in proposals or protocols associated with
the award?

* Was the exposure the result of an isolated procedural mishap
that was known only to affect the individual inveived, or was it linked

to protocols, equipment, safely, or bio-containment measures that may
present heightened exposure risks for other personnel? Were the
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protocols for aerosol chamber use/cleaning designed and/or reviewed in
accordance with federal regulations and institutional policies? Were

these protocols revised post-incident?

* Who was the PI overseeing the work associated with the incident?
Was this PI named in the DHS Center proposal and on the select agent
registration for work with both the agent itself and the laboratory

involved in the exposure? Please provide verification from the

application for select agent registration.

* Which Texas A&M administrators and/or oversight bodies were
notified of the exposure? Please provide a clear explanation of the

chain of events that caused TAMU to not call CDC or APHIS or submit a
Form 3 immediately foltowing the incident,

* What steps have been taken to coordinate with CDC in addressing
both the exposure incident and the lapse in oversight that resulted in

failure to report? Has a Form 3 been submitted retrospectively? If so,
please provide a copy to DHS for review. Has the CDC issued other
requirements with respect to the University's registration and/or select
agent program? Has CDC conducted any site visits or inspections in
response o the incident?

Thank you for your cooperation.
Regards,
Matt

Matthew Clark, Ph.D.
Director, University Programs
Science and Technology Directorate

202-254-6377



| (7/5/2007) James Calvin - Fwd: Incident at TAMU

Page 1|

From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:53 PM
Subject: Fwd: Incident at TAMU

>>> Richard Ewing 4/16/2007 5:36 PM >>>
FYI Again, the response is from the Provost, not the VPR,
Dick

Dr. Richard E. Ewing

Vice President for Research
Texas A&M University

1112 TAMU

College Station, TX 77843-1112
Phone: (979) 845-8585

FAX: (979) 845-1855

E-mail: richard-ewing@tamu.edu

>>> "Neville Clarke" <pn-clarke@tamu.edu> 4/16/2007 11:57 am >>>
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
safety, training and reporting precedures following the human error
involved in not reporting this incident.

An independent review of our processes and procedures will be conducted
by representatives of the Center for Disease Control {CDC), who are on
campus today (Monday, April 16}, We will be fully cooperative and our
goal is 1o comply with all current biosafety standards.

No university officials will make further comments regarding this
incident unti! our final internal report is issued following the CDC
review.*



| (7/5/2007) James Calvin - Fwd: FW: Incident Report

_Page 1]

From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:54 PM
Subject: Fwd: FW: Incident Report

>>> "Carlson, David S." <DSCarlson@tamhsc.edu> 5/2/2007 8:50 PM >>>

From: Carlson, David S,

Sent: Wed 5/2/2007 5:21 PM

To: Dickey, Nancy W.; Alicia Dorsey; Nelson, Barry C.; Joyce, Jim; Van Wilsen; Colenda, Christopher; Hanks, Clay D.;
Venuti, Douglas; Scholtz, 1. Marty

Cc: Bishop, Julie; Raines, Angelia

Subject: Incident Report

Dear All,

Today I received a copy of a memorandum (dated April 30, 2007) regarding a "report of incident” of potential exposure of
two HSC employees to a select agent. Upon further investigation and in cooperation with the TAMU Office of Compliance,
it was determined that the agent in question is exempt; therefore, the incident does not constitute a reportable event,
Because it did constiute a potential safety issue and health-monitoring was involved, however, the PI did notify the Office of
Environmental Safety, as required. This incident will be reviewed by the IBC and a report will be provided through the
TAMU Office of Compliance to the HSC Office of Environmental Safety and HSC Office of Research. No additional reporting
is indicated at this time.

Although this specific incident apparently does not constitute a problem, it does further indicate the importance of
awareness of the policies and procedures for communicastion regarding potential Incidents invoiving research and
laboratory safety, This matter will be reviewed by the HSC Office of Research in cooperation with the Office of Facilities
and Safety,

David S. Carlson, PhD
Regents Professor
Vice President for Research & Graduate Studies

Texas A&M Health Science Center
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From: "Mattox, Brent S" <bsmattox@tamu.edu>

To: "Raines, Angelia" <araines@vprmail. tamu.edu>

Date: 51372007 9:32 AM

Subject: RE: Incident Report

CC: <f-bazer@tamu.edu>, "Salsman, John M" <jmsalsman@tamu.edu>, <t-ficht@tam...
Angelia:

This is indeed an exempt strain (S19) and is not regulated as a select
agent. However, potential exposures to any potentially infectious agents
are of concern to the Occupational Health Program. Strain 19 vaccines
have caused disease development in laboratory workers through accidental
seff-inoculation. | would note that the risk of disease development from

this particular event is extremely unlikely, if not impossible. Although

the individuals will be enrolled in our testing program for titers, | do

not consider it likely any positive results will be found.

EHSD will work with the researcher to improve decontamination procedures
at the Veterinary Research Park, but no work being performed prior to

the incident would have generated an aerosol. Person to Person contact
causing illness is extremely rare, with no documented cases from casual
contact.

A final report should be available in a few days.
Sincerely,
Brent S. Mattox, CIH

----Original Message-----

From: Angelia Raines [mailto:araines@vprmail tamu.edu]

Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2007 7:32 PM

To: Mattox, Brent S

Cc: f-bazer@tamu.edu; Salsman, John M; t-ficht@tamu.edu; Tiffany Agnew
Subject: Fwd: Incident Report

Hi Brent,

| believe the attached email is in reference to the incident Tom Ficht
contacted you about. | was contacted this afternoon. If | understood
the information correctly, the incident involved an exempt vaccine
strain of Brucella.

Two people came into contact with a member of the research team who had
not yet completed decontamination procedures. They have been asked to
undergo medical monitoring. He also indicated that the research team

has been re-trained on the safety protocol. | asked him to send an

email to you today, detailing everything that happened as well as what

steps have been taken to ensure personnel safety. | have aiso asked him
to report this to the IBC. Please let me know immediately, if the

strain is not exempt.

By way of this email, | am asking Tiffany to contact you and the IBC
Vice Chair to discuss the review/investigation process. She can also
discuss the reporting/documentation requirements.
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Thank you,
Angelia
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:55 PM

Subject: Re: Fwd: FW: Incident Report

>>> "Fuller Bazer" <FBazer@cvm tamu.edu> 5/3/2007 10:25 AM >>>

Thanks Jim. The good news is that the agent was not a select agent, but we do now have plans for a review process from
outside experts that should hefp. The fact that SOPs were in place and known to PI, but were not adhered to by member
of the lab. The reporting issue is under review also by Patriot Act Task Force,

Fuller

Fuller W. Bazer, Ph.D., Regents Fellow, Distinguished Professor and O.D. Butler Chair in Animal Sclence
Associate Vice President for Research

Texas A&M University

Telephone: 979-458-2876

Cell Phone: 979-324-7364

Facsimile: 979-845-1855

email: fhazer@cvym.tamu.edu

URL: http://recovery.tamu.eduy

URL: http://animalscience.tamu.edy/

>>> "James Calvin" <j-calvin@tamu.edu> 05/02/07 10:46 PM >>>

>>> "Carlson, David S." <DSCarlson@tamhsc.edu> 5/2/2007 8:50 pm >>>

From: Carlson, David S.

Sent: Wed 5/2/2007 5:21 PM

To: Dickey, Nancy W.; Alicia Dorsey; Nelson, Barry C.; Joyce, Jim; Van
Wilson; Colenda, Christopher; Hanks, Clay D.; Venuti, Douglas; Schoitz,
J. Marty

Cc: Bishop, Julie; Raines, Angelia

Subject: Incident Report

Dear All,

Today 1 received a copy of a memorandum {dated April 30, 2007}
regarding a "report of incident” of potential exposure of two HSC
employees o a select agent. Upon further investigation and in
cooperation with the TAMU Office of Compliance, it was determined that
the agent in question is exempt; therefore, the incident does not
constitute a reportable event. Because it did constiute a potential

safety issue and health-monitoring was involved, however, the PI did
notify the Office of Environmental Safety, as required. This incident

will be reviewed by the IBC and a report will be provided through the
TAMU Office of Compliance to the HSC Office of Environmental Safety and
HSC Office of Research. No additional reporting is indicated at this

time.
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Although this specific incident apparently does not constitute a

problem, it does further indicate the importance of awareness of the
policies and procedures for communicastion regarding potential incidents
involving research and laboratory safety. This matter will be reviewed
by the HSC Office of Research in cooperation with the Office of

Facilities and Safety.

David S. Carlson, PhD
Regents Professor
Vice President for Research & Graduate Studies

Texas A&M Health Sclence Center
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From: James Calvin
To: Calvin, James
Date: 7/5/2007 2:55 PM
Subject: Fwd: Re: IBC

>>> "Fuller Bazer" <FBazer@cvm.tamu.edu> 5/23/2007 9:50 AM >>>
Hi Angie, This is a good plan. I agree that all need to attend. I will be happy to write a letter over Ewing's signature and
sign for him to indicate that this training is mandatory for all who are working in an SBAT facility.

I will be here on June 1st to participate as you indicated. Thanks, Fuller

Fuller W. Bazer, Ph.D., Regents Fellow, Distinguished Professor and Q.D. Butler Chair in Animal Science
Associate Vice President for Research

Texas A&M University

Telephone: 979-458-2876

Cell Phone: 979-324-7364

Facsimile: 979-845-1855

email: fhazer@cvm.tamu.edu

URL: http://recovery.tamu.edu

URL: hitp://animalscience.tamu.edu/

>>> "Angelia Raines" <araines@vprmail.tamu.edu> 05/23/07 8:46 AM >>>

I was out sick Monday afternoon and yesterday so I am trying to catch up, Y am trying to pull together all of the SBAT
personnel for a June 1st training event. The following is a list of agenda items:

Approval process prior to accessing select agents -

Approval process prior to accessing an SBAT facility -

Incident Response process -

Intra-facility transfers -

Inter-facility transfers -

Process for New submissions, amendments and annual reviews (including risk assessment process and medical surveillance
process)

Requirement Personal Protection Equipment {PPE)

Review of Security Plan, Safety Plan and Incident Response Plan

Quatity assurance reviews (bi-monthly inspections)

I would like you to give opening and closing remarks regarding the importance of following alf SBAT requirements.

Because I am trying to pull this together so quickly, I am anticipating that some employees will not be able to attend. 1 wili
schedule two follow up sessions, however, [ believe that all employees must be required to complete the training by mid
June. Talso want to require the same training for all new employees hefore they are allowed ta work in an SBAT (ab.

Please let me know if there are other items that you believe need to be covered. I.am planning to communicate the plan
with the SBAT PIs today so let me know if there are changes you would like to see.

Thanks!
Angie

>>> "Fuller Bazer" <FBazer@cvm.tamu.edu> 5/23/2007 7:46 AM >>>

Angie, I met with Chris Meyer yesterday to let him know that I was going to make a short address to 1BC today regarding:
1) PI responsibilities to follow SOPs; 2) increasing commitment to compliance by all parties; 3) need for increased
communication between PI, ORC and EHS; and 4) need for PI, in the event of an incident, to fully engage EHS and give full
information to facilitate the investigation, determine the facts and report to ORC so that responses and decisions on
reporting are hased on solid evidence.
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Next, we need to meet with those PI working with select agents to discuss these issues. One of them being bimonthly
inspections and another being related to responses to peer-review team recommendations. We need to have this meeting
later this week or early next week.

Thanks, Fuller

Fuller W. Bazer, Ph.D,, Regents Fellow, Distinguished Professor and O.D. Butler Chair in Animal Science
Associate Vice President for Research

Texas A&M University

Telephone: 979-458-2876

Cell Phone; 979-324-7364

Facsimile: 979-845-1855

email: fbazer@cvm.tamu.edu

URL: http://recovery.tamu,edu

URL: http://animalscience.tamu.edu/
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:56 PM

Subject: Fwd: Subject: Mandatory Training, To: All employees involved in research using
Select Agents

Attachments: letter+attachment. pdf

>>> Kelly Marcum 5/25/2007 3:30 PM »>>>
All,

Attached is the Memorandum to all employees involved in research using Select Agents and Agenda, from Dr. Ewing.

Thank you,

Kelly Marcum
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Office of the Vice Presidont for Research
Texas AGM University

May 25, 2007

Memorandum C‘% — ,
From: Dr. Richard E. Ewing ’/ 5;

To All employees involved in rescarch using Sclect Agents
Subject: Mandatory Training

All institutions and individvals that conduct research using select agents and toxins are
required to adhere to federal regulations regarding their possession, use, and transfer. Select
Agents are those identified on the HHS and USDA Select Agents and Toxins List and are
considered to be agents posing a severe threat to human and/or animal health, plant health, or
animal and plant products.

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) regulates and oversees the possession,
use, and transfer of select agents and toxing that are used here at Texas A&M University,
These regulations establish requirements for registration, risk assessments, access, safety
plans, security plans, incident response plans, training, transfers, record keeping, inspections,
and reporting.

Texas A&M University is committed to the protection of its staff and the public from the risks
of exposure to Select Agents. After investigating recent events involving our Select Agent
program, we have recognized the crucial need for training across campus.

In order to proceed in a timely manner to ensure that all employees involved in research using
select agents are aware of and understand all of the regulatory requirements, mandatory
training will be held on June 1, 2007. Training will begin at 9:00 a.m. and end at 1:00 p.m.
It is imperative that you receive this training.

Attached 1s the agenda.

pe: Dr. Eddie J. Davis
Dr. James A, Calvin
Dr. David Carlson
Dr. Fuller W. Bazer
Mr. Chris M. Mevers
Mz, Charley B, Clark
Ms. Angelia M. Raines
Mz, Brent S. Mattox
Dr. Vernon L, Tesh
Dr, Tom A. Ficht
Dr. L. Gairy Adams
Dr. James E. Samuel
Ms. Tiffany M. Agnew



Texas A&M University

Select Biological Agent and Toxins Program Training

June 1, 2007
9:00 aqm- - 1:00 pomo
Agenda
 Time Topic Presenter(s)
9:00 a.m. Opening Remarks Fuller Bazer
9:05 a.m. Agenda Review Angelia Raines
9:10 - 9:40 Process for New submissions, Amendments and Vernon Tesh/Thomas Ficht and
Annual reviews (including risk assessment Brent Mattox
process and medical surveillance process)
9:40 - 9:45 Approval process prior to accessing an SBAT Angelia Raines
Agent -
9:45-9:50 Approval process prior to accessing a facility Angelia Raines
9:50-10:20 Occupational Health Program including blood Brent Mattox
bome pathogen training
10:20-10-30 Break
10:30-11:10 Research Specific Safety Plan /SOPs Jim Samuel
Thomas Ficht —
11:10-12:00 Overview of the Requirement for Personal Brent Mattox
Protection Equipment (PPE) including handouts
on the Respiratory Protection Program
12:00 - 12:10 Intra-Facility Transfers Brent Mattox
12:00 - 12:20 Inter-facility transfers Tiffany Agnew
12:20 - 12:50 Incident Response process Bert and Brent
12:50 -12:55 Bi-monthly monitoring Angelia Raines
12:50 p.m. Closing Remarks Fuller Bazer




[ (7/5/2007) James Calvin - Fwd: Select Agent Training Page 1)

From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:56 PM
Subject: Fwd: Select Agent Training

Attachments: Houston Map_1.pdf; Select Agent training announcment .pdf; Select Agent Tra
ining Agenda.doc

>>> Angelia Raines 5/25/2007 3:50 PM >>>
Attached is an announcement for Select Agent Program training. The training will be held on June 1, 2007, in the auditorium of the
Houston Building. Training will begin at 9:00 a.m.

An agenda has also been included as well as directions to the Houston Building.

Thank you,
Angelia Raines

Angelia Raines

Director, VPR Office of Research Compiiance
TAMU 1186

1500 Research Parkway

Suite 150 B (Centeq Building)

College Station, Texas 77843-1186
araines@vprmail .tamu.edu

{979) 847-9362 office

(979) B62-3176 fax

(770) 789-3456 Cell
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Ofice of the Vice President for Research
Texas AGM University

May 25, 2007
Memorandum

From:

Cchonng & '
Dr. Richard E. Ewing ‘

To All employees involved in research using Select Agents

Subject: Mandatory Training

All institutions and individuals that conduct research using select agents and toxins are
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

The Centers for Disease Conirol and Prevention (CDC) regulates and oversees the possession,
use, and transfer of select agents and toxins that are used here at Texas A&M University.
These regulations establish requirements for regisiration, risk assessments, access, safety
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
training will be held on June 1, 2007. Training will begin at 9:00 a.m. and end at 1:00 pam.
It is imperative that you receive this training.

Attached is the agenda,

Dr. Eddie J. Davis

Dr. James A. Calvin
Dr. David Carlson

Dr. Fuller W, Bazer
Mr. Chris M. Meyers
Mr. Charley B. Clark
Ms. Angelia M. Raines
Mr. Brent 8. Mattox
Pr. Vemon L, Tesh
Dr. Tom A. Ficht

Dr. L. Garry Adams
Dr. James E. Samuel
Ms. Tiffany M. Agnew

pe:



Texas A&M University

Select Biological Agent and Toxins Program Training

Houston Building - Auditorium

June 1, 2007
9:00 a.m. — 1:00 p.m.
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
9:40 ~ 9:45 Approval process prior to accessing an SBAT Angelia Raines
Agent -
9:45-9:50 Approval process prior to accessing a facility Angelia Raines
9:50-10:20 Occupational Health Program including blood Brent Mattox
borne pathogen training
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
12:00-12:20 Inter-facility transfers Tiffany Agnew
12}20 - 12:50 Incident Response process Bert Kretzschmar and
Brent Mattox
12:50-12:55 Bi-monthly monitoring Angelia Raines

12:50 p.m.

Closing Remarks

Fuller Bazer
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From: James Calvin

To: Calvin, James

Date: 7/5/2007 2:57 PM

Subject: Fwd: Research Compliance Request

>>> "Richard Ewing" <richard-ewing@tamu.edu> 6/14/2007 9:24 PM >>>
Dan,

I'm writing to follow up to the recent request from my office for additional funding to support a new hire with strong
experience with biological agents to help strengthen the university’s research compliance program. Charley Clark and I met
on Wednesday and agreed that we should move immediately to hire such a person that would report jointly to John
Salsman in Charley's shop and to my office. We agreed that this dual reporting would help facilitate effective
communication between the two offices, and the establishment of this new position would be a positive and immediate
action in response to the CDC findings, Additionally, it would address some of the recent requests we have received from
DHS regarding our select agent research activities. We appreciate your quick feedback regarding this request so that our
offices can move immediately toward establishing, posting and searching for a qualified candidate.

Best regards,
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

Director, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Suspension of Select Agent Work: Texas A&M Universily

Dr. Richard BEwing, Responsible Official
Texas A&M University (Registration # C20060605-0489)

The Centers for Diseasc Control and Prevention’s (CDC) Division of Select Agents and
Toxins (DSAT) bas received and reviewed your responses to the observations in the
DSAT report from the April 16-18, 2007, site visit inspection of your facility Based on
the inspection and the information provided in your responsecs dated May 17, 2007, the
DSAT has the following concerns regarding the select agent work being performed at
Texas A&M University (TAMU):

1. Whether TAMU mests biosafety standards and requiroments appropriate for the
select agents and toxins you possess. Specifically, whether your biosafety plan
ensures that select agents and toxins are used in a safe manner that is
conmensurate with the risk of the select agents and toxins (42 CFR § 73.12).

2. Whether TAMU has implemented a security plan that adequately prevenis unauthorized
persons from gaining access to select agents and toxins (42 CER § 73.1 1).

3. Whether TAMU has an occupational health program that provides effective medical
surveillance of occupational exposures to select agents and toxins.

4. Whether TAMU has the appropriate administrative control of select agent and toxin
activities. Specifically, there is evidence that select agent work (i.e., aeroso! studies with
Brugella species) was performed at TAMU without prior approval by the DSAT. In
addition, there is evidence that multiple oceupational exposures that occurred at your
entity were not properly reported to DSAT as required by 42 CFR §73.19.

5. Whether the TAMU Responsible Official is familiar with and is ensuring compliance
with the requirements of the sefect agent regulations (42 CFR § 73.9[a]).

Due to the serious nature of these deficiencies, | have determined that in order to protect public
health and safety, the cease and desist order from CDC to TAMU of April 20, 2007, shall be
expanded to include all work with select agents and toxins at TAMU). Effective immediately, all
select agent and toxin work must stop and all seleet agents and toxins must be securely stored
until further notice. The DSAT intends to conduct a comprehensive review of all select agent and
toxin activities at TAMU {o delermine what steps will be required to ensure compliance with 42
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CFR Part 73. This review will include a site visit to your facility at a date to be determined
between July 9 and July 23, 2007. If it is determined that TAMU cannot or will not comply
with all provisions of the select agent regulations, the DSAT may recommend that
TAML’s certificate of registration should be revoked (See 42 CFR § 73.8). The
revocation of your certificate of registration would require the cessation of all work with
select agents and toxins and either the destruction or fransfer of these materials to other
registered facilities.

To facilitate a comprehensive review of the select agent and toxin activities at TA MU,
please have the following documentation immediately available for the inspectors upon
their arrival for a comprehensive site visit of your entity-

&

All correspondence including e-mails related to all occupational exposures with
select agents and toxins that have occurred at your entity;

All occupational health records for individuals conducting aerosol work with
select agents or working in buildings where aerosol work was being conducted;
All lahoratory records and notebooks for work with select. agents and toxins;

All training records for individuals working with select agents and toxins;

All records pertaining to the maintenance and repair of [aboratory facilities
involved with select agent and toxin work; and,

All records related to internal and external audits, revicws, safety inspections, and
incident reports pertaining to wotk with select agents.

In addition, please ensure that key personnel will be available for inlerviews incl uding,
but not limited to:

& 9 B & @ @ o

The Responsible Official

All Altemate Responsible Officials

The Occupational Ilealth Director

The Biosafety Officer

Principal Investigators working with select agents and toxing
Institutional Biosafety Committee Members

Director of Environmental Health and Safety

Please contact Dr. Robbin Weyant, Director, DSAT, at (404) 718-2000 if you have
questions regarding this correspondence.

(N~ @@g

Louise Gerberding A&
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Nationat institutes of Health
Bethesda, Maryland 20892

July 5, 2007

Richard Ewing, Ph.D.

Vice President for Research

Texas A & M University JUL 8 % o0
312 Jack K. Williams Administration Building

1112 TAMU

College Station, Texas 77843-1112

Re: Suspension of Select Agent Work — NIH-Supported Projects
Dear Dr. Ewing:

On June 30™, Dr. Julie Lousie Gerberding, Director of the Centers for Disease Control,
directed Texas A&M University (TAMU) to stop all select agent and toxin work and to
securely store all select agents and toxins effective immediately until further notice. By
this letter, and in response to CDC's action, the National Institutes of Health (NIH) is
requiring that all work on NIH-supported projects involving select agents at TAMU cease
immediately and until further notice. Due to the CDC action, NIH believes that TAMU is
unable to materially comply with the terms and conditions of the awards that require
the use of select agents or toxins. Accordingly, no funds may be drawn down from the
payment system and no obligations may be made against Federal funds for research
involving select agents at TAMU until this situation is resolved. Only activities that are
clearly severable and independent of activities involving select agents may be conducted
at this time.

In addition, TAMU must provide NIH with a listing of grants, cooperative agreements,
and contracts involved in select agent research either as a direct recipient or as the sub-
recipient funded through subcontract/consortium agreements. The listing should
include the NIH grant, cooperative agreement, or contract number, the Principal
Investigator, and the amount of funding in each project allocated for select agent
research. This information must be provided to the NIH at the foliowing below no later
than July 16, 2007;



Page 2 - Richard Ewing, Ph.D,

Diane Dean

Director, Division of Grants Compliance and Oversight
Office of Policy for Extramural Research Administration, OER
National Institutes of Health

6705 Rockledge Drive, Suite 350/MSC 7974

Bethesda, MD 20892 (for express mail use 20817)

Thank you for your cooperation. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact
me at 301-435-0935.

Sincerely,
. y /.. ’,/’q /f
} f 16 G 7
Pt //,/ W [," /‘f’_,’/ ’ .
J@seph E}l o

.;‘,4>'-°"”D|rector Office of Policy for Extramural
# Research Administration

Office of Extramural Research

Office of the Director

National Institutes of Health, DHHS

cc:
Dr. Robbin Weyant, Director, DSAT, CDC
Br. Norka Ruiz Bravo, NIH

Dr. Lana Skirholl, NIH

Diane J, Frasier, NIH
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7 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service

, Centers for Disease Control
i Received and Prevention (CDC)
\ N APR 20 2007 Atlanta, GA 30333 -

Research Compliance April 20, 2007

Dr. Ridhazd wing, Responsible Official
Texas A& M University (Registration #(320060605=0489)
1500 Research Parkwa , Suite B150, TAMU 1186
College Station, TX 77843-1 183

Fax: (979) 862-3176

2.  The experimenta] aerosolization of any select agent or toxin performed at the
Texas A&M University,
3. Allowing access to select agents and toxing by any individual who has not been
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Teport of their findings undey 5 separate cover.

Our immediate concern is the lack of proper biosafety and securily practices used in agrosof
experiments conducted under the direction of Dr. Thomas Ficht, in which a Iaboratorian had an
occupational exposure to Brucella in February, 2006. While federal regulations (42CFR. -
§73.19) require immediate notification to DSAT of Such an occupational exposure, followed by a
written report to DSAT within seven (7) days, DSAT received R0 notice of the oceupational
Exposure until April, 2007. Additionally, T note that work involving Brucelly abortus, Brucelly
melitensis, and Brucella suis is not currently approved by DSAT for Room 143 in Building 972,

) § &
ot g
ey
/" /
g

Robbin Wey,

Director

Division of Select Agents and Toxing

Coordinating Office of Terrorism Preparedness and
Emergency Response
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””mm” Office of the Vice President for Research
Texas A&M University

May 17, 2007

Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS

Director

Division of Select Agents and Toxins

Coordinating Office of Terrorism Preparedness and
Emergency Response

Department of Health and Human Services

Centers for Disease Contro}! and Prevention

1600 Clifton Rd. MS A-46

Atlanta, GA 30333

RE: Response to Letter Received on May 4, 2007, Texas A&M University: Report
of Site Visit; Request for Additional Information

Dr. Weyant:

The following report provides answers to the questions posed by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) in your letter regarding the site visit request for
additional information.

The site visit was in response to a report submitted by Texas A&M University
concerning an employee’s exposure to Brucella on February 9, 2006.

At the time of the incident, the responsibility for managing CDC correspondence and
communication was transitioning from one Alternate Responsible Official {ARO) to
another and the report was inadvertently not submitted. Texas A&M University has
never purposefully withheld reporting this occupational health €xposure.

First, let us state that the exposure to 7 was the result of an inadequate
SOP with regard to the cleaning of the Madison Chamber. As you know, this research
Is proprietary, as is the SOP for cleaning the chamber. Qur protocol was consistent with
our prior experience using the Madison Chamber in experiments mvolving other select
agents. However, it is now clear that the SOP must be amended to provide for more
personal protection. We have enhanced the SOP 1o reflect this discovery,

Second, while . was clearly not on the list to be involved with Brucella
experimentation, cxposure was not related to carrying, using, manipulating, or
gaining possession of the select agent. Rather, we believe  contacted the select agent
as she cleaned the chamber. Therefore, to be clear, was not assisting in
conducting the experiment, but did reach into the chamber when attempting to clean it,
Again, a new SOP will be in place at Texas A&M to limit access to the labs and to
broadly communicate all changes in the rules and procedures.



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS
May 17, 2007
Page 2

Observations noted on April 16, 2007, through April 18, 2007, at Texas A&M
University (Page numbers from the BMBL or 42 CFR Part 73 specifying each
requirement are given in parentheses).

Observations:
~Luservations:

1. An individual or entity required to register under this part must maintain
complete records relating to the activities covered by this part. Such records m ust
include: Information about all entries into areas containing select agents or

Observation: At the time of the inspection, there was no record of access to room
tocated in building being kept during the time the room was used for work
with select agents,

Request for supplemental information; Please provide an explanation as to why
entries into room were not being recorded as required under §73.17 (Records)
and how your entity wil comply with all the requirements of §73.17.

Texas A&M Response: There are multiple rooms approved for select agent use
within the biohazard facility in Building including Room Access logs to
the biohazard suite recorded facility entry listing a specific animal room housing

suite to Room for short periods of time to perform specific procedures, then
returned to their original housing room. A separate log for Room was not
maintained.

After input from CDC during the last site visit, we have added a separate entry log
used specifically for Room We have attached the log as well as the standard
operating procedure for the use of Room (Attachment A),

2. A certificate of regisiration may be amended to reflect changes in circumstances

(e.g., changes in the activities involving any select agents or toxins, or the



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS
May 17, 2007
Page 3

addition or removal of select agents or toxins)(1) Prior to any change, the
Responsible Official must apply for an amendment fo 4 certificate of registration
by submitting the relevany page(s) of the registration application, {42 CFR §
73. 7(h)(1].

Observation: Documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors indicated twelve
aerosol experiments with Brucelly abortus and Brucella melitensis had been

performed using the aerosol chamber located in room focated in building
since October of 2005. To date, DSAT has not received or approved an amendment
to update your certificate of registration to include these activities for room ‘In

addition, your entity was notified on June 7, 2006 (see Amendment #4) that prior to

Request for supplemental information: Please explain why your entity failed to
submit an amendment and receive approval from DSAT prior to the twelve aerosol
experiments with Brucella abortys and Brucella melitensis that had been
performed using the aerosol chamber located in room since October of 2005,

Texas A&M Response: An amendment request for authorization to use Brucella
abortus and Brucella melitensis was not submitted because the Institution did not
recognize that use of the chamber with Brucella was not approved by CDC,

In 2004, use of the chamber for Coxiella was halted by the Institution to await
CDC approval. This clear indication of the Institution’s desire to comply with the
regulations remains our highest priority. However, the Institution should have had
knowledge that Dr. Ficht was not approved for use of the chamber with Brucella.
Regrettably, the need for an amendment was not recognized, Even after the CDC
inspection report of April 2006, which requested SOP’s for Dr. Ficht’s use of the
chamber with Brucella (which were provided to CDC in May 2006), the Institution
did not recognize that the use of the chamber with those agents was not authorized.

In response, the Institution has implemented a reorganization of duties for its
SBAT program to prevent a reoccurrence of this type of error. Procedures,
tracking systems, and training have been developed and additional personnel
resources have been dedicated to this program,

3. An individual or entity required to register under this part may not provide an
individual access to a select agent or toxin, and an individual may not access g
select agent or toxin, unless the individual is approved by the HHS Secretary or

Administrator, Jollowing a security risk assessment by the Attorney General [42

CFR § 73. 10(a)].



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS

May 17, 2007

Page 4
Observation: On February 9, 2006, . who has not received
access approval from the DSAT, performed aerosolization experiments with
Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus. After completed the

acrosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus, she
cleaned the aerosolization chamber by wiping down the rear inside of the chamber
with disinfectant. Thisg cleaning technique caused } head and arm to
enter into the interior of the chamber, most likely resulting '
occupational exposure to either Brucellq melitensis or Brucella abortus.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide an explanation regarding
this apparent allowance of unauthorized access to select agents including; (1) Has
your entity allowed other unauthorized access 1o select agents to other individuals
and who are the individuals who had unauthorized access to select agents, along
with dates, times, and select agents associated with other incidents of unauthorized
access; (2) If your entity has been allowing unauthorized access to select agents
besides this incident, what immediate actions have you taken to ensure that thege
individuals no longer have access; (3) What is your entity's plan of action to assure
prevention of similar events from occurring; and, (4) During the unauthorized
access, how was the select agent safeguarded against theft, loss, or release (see 42
CF.R §73,11(2)) during this allowance of unauthorized access to select agents.

Texas A&M_Response: did not perform aerosolization
experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus, Our understanding of
42 CFR § 73.10 has been that a person is considered to have access to the agent if
they have the ability to carry, use, or manipulate it, or if they have the ability to
8ain possession of a select agent or toxin,

The Institution does not allow unauthorized personnel access to select agents.

who was under escort, was exposed to a contaminated surface. She did
not have access to select agents and she did not perform any experiments, She
should not have been allowed to clean the chamber.

To prevent future occurrences, additional training will be required of all approved
personnel concerning prevention of escorted visitors having contact with potentia}
contaminated surfaces.

4. Each individual with access to select agents or toxins must have the appropriate
education, training, and/or experience (o handle or use such agents or toxins {42
CFR 73,10(c)]. An individual or enlity required to register under this part must
provide information and training on biosafety and Security to each individual with
access approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrator before he/she has such
access. In addition, an individual oy entity must provide information and trainin J 4
on biosafety and security to each individual not approved for access from the
HHS Secretary or Administrator before he/she works in or visits areqs where
select agents or toxins are handled or stored (e.g., laboratories, growth chambers,



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS
May 17, 2007
Page 5

animal rooms, greenhouses, storage areas, etc). The training must address the
particular needs of the individual, the work they will do, and the risks Posed by the
select agents or toxins. (42 CFR 73.15 (o).

Observation: On February 9, 2006, performed
aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus.
According to she did not receive training or have any experience in
handling Brucella melitensis, Brucella abortus or Brucelly SUIS.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide an explanation why
training prior to her work with select

did not receive the appropriate
agents. Based on this incident, please describe your entity's plan of action to assure
that all individuals who work or visit areas where select agents or toxins are
handled or stored will be provided appropriate training,

Texas A&M Response: did not perform aerosolization
experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus, Her presence in the
laboratory was to assist in the cotrect operation of the Madison Chamber. She
should have received training relating to Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus.

As a result of this incident, no one will be allowed access to the chamber without
documented proof of proper training. In addition, all personnel utilizing the BL3
chamber will be required to wear PAPRs. All Select Agent personnel will receive
updated training with regard to the necessity of strict adherence to the regulatory
requirements and standard operating procedures.

5. An individual or entity may not conduct a restricted experiment with g HHS select
agent or foxin unless approved by and conducted in accordance with any
conditions prescribed by the HHS Secretary. In addition, an individual or entity
may not conduct a restricted experiment with an overlap select agent or toxin
unless approved by and conducted in accordance with any conditions prescribed
by the HHS Secretary, after consultation with Administrator, Restricted
experiments: Experiments utilizing recombinant DNA that involve the deliberate
transfer of a drug resistance trait to select agents that are not known to acquire
the trait naturally, if such acquisition could compromise the use of the drug to
control disease agents in humans, veterinary medicine, or agriculture [42 CFR

§73.13 (a),(b)(1)].

Observation: According to laboratory personnel interviewed by the CDC
Inspectors, Dr. Ficht had conducted restricted experiments utilizing recombinant
DNA that involve the deliberate transfer of a drug resistance trait to select agents
that are not known to acquire the trait naturally, if such acquisition could
compromise the use of the drug to control disease agents in humans, veterinary
medicine, or agriculture (see 42 C.F.R. § 73.13(b)(1)). Specifically, experiments
conducted by Dr. Ficht that involved the introduction of plasrids containing



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS
May 17, 2007
Page 6

kanamyecin and chloramphenicol resistance cassettes used as selectable markers in
Brucella melitensis, Brucelly abortus and Brucella suis. Please note that during the
February 2005 inspection of your entity, the inspectors identified that PI Tsolis's
standard operating procedures indicated restricted experiments being conducted
and that this work was not reflected on the PI's statement of work for your entity's
certification of registration. On April 11, 2005, you responded that "PI Tsolis'
recombinant antibiotic resistance work has ceased and is not currently planned. If
this type of work is considered in the future, an amendment to update the current
registration for PI Tsolis will be submitted to the CDC.”

Request for supplemental information: Please provide a detailed description of
all select agent work being conducted by PIs at your entity; describe why any
restricted experiments have been performed at TAMU without approval from
DSAT, and what steps the entity will take to prevent reoccurrence of a restricted
experiment being conducted without approval from the DSAT. Also, please
provide a list of all select agent strains currently possessed by TAMU in which
antibiotic resistance markers have been introduced using recombinant DNA
techniques. In addition, please include a copy of any Institutional Biosafety
Committee (JBC) minutes for all projects that involve select agents and toxins
mcluding a list of the IBC members, date the project was approved, and the
justification for this approval.

Texas A&M Response: Attachment B contains details of the work with select
agents for each principal investigator. The Institution is not conducting any
restricted experiments. By the definition of a restricted experiment found in 42
CFR § 73.13 (b)(1); Experiments utilizing recombinant DNA that involve the
deliberate transfer of the drug resistance trait to select agents that are not known to
acquire the trait naturally, if such acquisition could compromise the use of the drug
to control disease agents in humans, veterinary medicine, or agriculture—we do not
conduct restricted experiments. Prior to conducting any restricted experiments,
Texas A&M University will gain approval from DSAT,

The experiments using kanamycin and chioramphenicol are not restricted under
the definition because ejther they are known to acquire the train naturally or they
are not used to control brucellosis in humans, veterinary medicine, or agriculture,
Details of PI Ficht’s work, found in Attachment B contains further information
regarding these experiments as well as references.

Attachment C contains the [BC documentation (application containing the risk
assessment) for select agent research. This work was reviewed in 2003 and 2004
before IBC guidelines for documentation were clear. All select agent work is being
re-reviewed this year. Documentation of those studies that have already been re-
reviewed is included in this package. IBC minutes from the 2003-2004 period do
not reflect specific project discussion or approval. These minutes do not
specifically reference select agents.  Attachment D contains a list of the IBC
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members, and 2007 minutes including review and approval of select agent projects,

Observation; On February 9, 2006, - 1, who has not received
access approval from the DSAT, performed aerosolization experiments with
Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus. After completed the

with disinfectant. This cleaning technique caused head and arm to
enter into the interior of the chamber, most likely resulting in oo
occupational exposure to either Brucella melitensis or Brucelly abortus.

Request for supplemental information: As your entity's security plan states iz
section C (Personnel Security) that "only DOJ authorized persons will have access
to select agents," please provide an explanation regarding this apparent allowance
of unauthorized access to select agents even though this practice deviates from the
current policy outlined in your security plan.

Texas A&M Response: did not perform aerosolization

experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucellg abortus. Based on the
definition of access found in 42 CFR § 73.10, never had the “ability
to carry, use, or manipulate the agent, nor did she have the ability to gain
possession of a select agent or toxin, " Throughout the entire time she was in the
laboratory, DOJ approved persommel escorted her, observed and
instructed regarding use of the Madison Chamber, but did not perform the
experiment.

As a result of the incident, however, all laboratory personnel are being retrained on
the regulatory requirements in order to ensure that no unauthorized person will
have access to select agents,

An individual or entity required fo register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or foxin, give its intended yse. {42 CFR § 73.12].Ventilation should be
provided in accordance with criteria from the Guide Sfor Care and Use of
Laboratory Animals, A ducted exhaust air ventilation system is provided. This
System creates directional airflow which draws air into the laboratory from
"clean” areas toward "contaminated” areas, The exhaust air is not recirculated
fo any other area of the building, Filtration and other treatments of the exhaust
air may not be required, but should be considered based on site requirements,
and specific agent manipulations and use conditions. The exhaust must be
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dispersed away from occupied areas and air intakes, or the exhaust anent be
HEPA-filtered. Personnel must verify that the direction of the airflow (into the
animal areas) is proper. It is recommended that a visual monitoring device that
indicates and confirms directional inward airflow be provided at the animal room
entry. Consideration should be given to installing an HVAC control system to
prevent sustained positive pressurization of the animal spaces. Audible alarms
should be considered to notify personnel of HVAC System failure [Biosafety in

Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories (BMBL): D8]

Observation; For room ocated in building . the CDC Inspectors were
unable to verify that the room had proper directional airflow at the time of the
inspection because the visual monitoring system used to confirm directional airflow
for the room was not functioning properly.

Request for supplemental information: As the CDC Inspectors were not able to

confirm that the room had directiona] airflow, please provide documentation that
Room has a functional visual monitoring device and that the directional
airflow is from "clean" area toward "contaminated" area.

Texas A&M Response: Room in Building nas been tested and it is
verified that airflow is directional into the laboratory. An indicator ball used as a
visual indicator was stuck and has been repaired. The suite also has an auxiliary fan
that is used to increase airflow due to filter loading and it has been engaged to
further increase ventilation rates. Documentation provided as Attachment E.

An individual or entity required to register under this parl must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use [42 CFR §73.12]. The completed Biosafety
Level 3 facility design and operational procedures must be documented, The
Sacility must be tested for verification that the design and operational parameters
have been met prior to operation, Facilities should be reverified at least annually
against these procedures as modified by operational experience [BMBL: D14].

Observation: The entity did not provide documentation for room located in
building that annual verification was performed to ensure that the laboratory

meets the design and operational parameters.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide this documentation.

Texas A&M Response: Copies of the annual verification for Room re
included in Attachment F. Please note that the most recent verification resulted in
an amendment to temporarily move the animals in that BL3 suite. We plan to
relocate the animals as soon as the amendment is approved.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
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.

implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use, {42 CFR §73.12), Equipment and work
surfaces in the room are routinely decontaminated with an effective disinfectant
after work with the infectious agent, and especially after overt spills, splashes, or
other contamination by infectious materials [BMBL: A 77

Observation: During the inspection of the aerosol chamber, the CDC Inspectors
noted that the interior and exterior of the chamber contained a significant amount
of animal hair.

Request for supplemental information: Please verify standard operating
procedures that provide documentation that the chamber is routinely
decontaminated with an effective disinfectant after work with the infectious agent
to ensure removal of all contaminated materials, including hair and animal waste
and explain if there was a deviation in standard protocols, what steps you will take
to ensure that standard protocols are followed.

Texas A&M Response: Guinea pig hair was present in the chamber, but it is not
considered to pose a risk to safe operation of the chamber. The procedure to
disinfect and clean the chamber begins after the animals are reroved. A chemical
disinfectant is sprayed into the chamber completely coating all surfaces within the
chamber. Following a period of several minutes to allow the disinfectant to have
its effects, the interior surfaces of the chamber are wiped down manually using
absorbent paper towels. This process removes all urine and fecal pellets and most
animal hair from the interior of the chamber., However, when white hair from the
guinea pigs is wet with disinfectant, it is particularly hard to sec against the silver
interior of the chamber, which is not well illuminated by room lights. Some hair
tends to stick to the sides of the chamber despite thorough cleaning. These hairs
pose no risk since they have been disinfected and do not preclude safe operation of
the chamber.

The standard operating procedures for the chamber including decontamination are
included in Attachment G.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42 CFR §73.12]. Continuous Sow
centrifuges or other equipment that may produce aerosols are contained in
devices that exhaust air through HEPA filters before discharge into the
laboratory. These HEPA Systems are tested at least annually. Alternatively, the
exhaust from such equipment may be veuted to the outside if it dispersed away
Sfrom occupied areas and air intakes {BMBL: D11].

Observation: According to documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, the
HEPA systems of the aerosol chamber located in room 143 are not routinely
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12,

verified or tested to ensure that the HEPA filters provide adequate protection. Dr,
David McMurray provided documentation to the CDC Inspectors that the routine
maintenance of the Madison Aerosol Chamber indicated that testing of the HEPA
system is not necessary.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation from the
manufacturer regarding HEPA system maintenance to support this statement,

Texas A& M Response: The filters on the unit have been tested by an outside
vendor and met the requirements of NSE/ANSI Standard 49-2004. Documentation
provided in Attachment H. To our knowledge, and confirmed by Dr. McMurray,
the only relevant documentation provided to CDC by Dr. McMurray was a copy of
the May 2004 Operating Procedures for Aerosol Chamber. This documentation
does not address testing or maintenance of the charmber. We do not have
documentation from the manufacturer regarding HEPA system maintenance.
EHSD will add the HEPA filtration on the aerosol chamber to the testing schedule
for biological safety cabinets.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use. {42 CFR § 73.12]. All manipulations of
infectious materials, necropsy of infected animals, harvesting of tissues or fluids
Jrom infected animals or embryonate eggs, etc. are conducted in a Class I or
Class II1 biological safety cabinet [BMBL: C5J.

Observation: The CDC Inspectors noted that the design of the chamber is such
that after the aerosol challenge, the nebulization unit containing infectious material
must be disassembled in the laboratory and not in the biosafety cabinet.

Request for supplemental information; Please provide documentation that safety
procedures are established and followed to minimize the risk for laboratorians
disassembling the nebulization unit containing infectious material.

Texas A&M Response: The attached standard operating procedures contain the
safety procedures established to minimize the risk for laboratory personnel
disassembling the nebulization unit containing infectious material (Attachment I).

The biosafety and containment procedures must be sufficient to contain the
select agent or toxin (e.g., physical structure and Jeatures of the entity, and
operational and procedural safeguards (42 CFR § 73.12(b))).

Observatior: Documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors indicated twelve
acrosol experiments with Brucella abortus and Brucelle melitensis had been
performed using the aerosol chamber located in room located in building

since October of 2005. The CDC inspectors were informed that the established



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS
May 17, 2007
Page 11

13

biosafety protocols for work with Mycobacterium were used for the aerosol
experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus.

the IBC to correct deficiencies noted in the risk assessments. As a result of new
information on risk assessment published in the recent 5% edition of the BMBL, the
Institution has developed an SOP for risk assessment. This procedure specifically
addresses the content of risk assessments and defines the roles and responsibilities
for the PI, BSO, and IBC. Attachment J contains the Risk Assessment SOP,
which now requires signature from the Investigator, BSO and the IBC Chair.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use. {42 CFR §73.12]. When g precedure or
process cannot be conducted within a biological safety cabinet, then appropriate
combinations of personal Pprotective equipment (e. & respirators, face shields) and
physical containment devices are used [RMBL: C5},

laboratorians present during these experiments, the CDC Inspectors were told that
the personal protective equipment being used consisted of an N-95 respirator,
safety glasses with splash guards, tyvek suits and gloves. Based on the CDC
Inspectors questions to the laboratorians about quantitative or qualitative fit testing
for the N-95 respirators, the CDC Inspectors determined that none of these
individuals had been fit tegted with the N-95 respirators. In addition, the CDC
Inspectors received documentation that annual respirator fit testing is not
performed for all laboratory workers that use N-95 respirators.
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Request for_supplemental information: Please provide an explanation why
laboratory workers are not tested to ensure that the N-95 respirator being used
provides adequate respiratory protection.

Texas A&M Response: All laboratory workers wearing any respiratory protection
are required to be fit-tested and trained prior to wearing respiratory protection. The

use of PAPRs is now required in Room m Building There was an
inconsistency between the facility protocol and the researcher protocols and some
researchers wore N-95 respirators. IBC will reinforce to all select agent participants
that respiratory training and fitting are required prerequisites to wearing respiratory
protection and that written protocols on personal protective equipment for Joint-use
facilities such as Building aust be strictly adhered to and enforced. Individual
protocols for select agent users in Building have been rewritten to require
PAPRs. EHSD will provide the necessary training and fit-testing for personnel. A
copy of the Respiratory Protection Plan utilized by EHSD is attached (Attachment

K)

Observation: The "Operating Procedures for the Biosafety Lahoratory Suite,
Veterinary Research Building" document dated 2/22/07 that was provided to the
CDC Inspectors states that N-95 respirators are used for acrosol studies. This
contradicts the undated risk assessment document that was provided to the CDC
Inspectors which states that powered air purifying respirators should be used.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain this discrepancy.

Texas A&M Response: The document dated 2/22/07 that included the use of N95
masks was in place prior to the incident; however, because of the way the
document was set to “track changes,” the date changed each time the document was
used. The undated risk assessment document was completed after the incident.
Attachment I contains the most current SOP.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given ifs intended use {42 CFR § 73.12]. Laboratory and support
personnel receive appropriate training on the potential hazards associated with
the work involved, the necessary precautions are incorporated into standard
operating procedures, Personnel are advised of special hazards and are required
to read and follow instructions on practices and procedures [BMBL: B 77

Observation: The entity did not provide documentation that individuals operating
the aerosol chamber had received traming fo ensure safety procedures were
followed during operation of the chamber for the twelve aerosol experiments with
Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis that had been performed using the aeroso]
chamber located in room located in building since October of 2005. The
entity did rot provide documentation that individuals operating the acrosol
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6.

chamber had received training to ensure safety procedures were followed during
operation of the chamber.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation that
training was conducted including the date of the training, a description of the
training provided, and the means used to verify that the employee understood the
training.

Texas A&M Response: Attached are the most recent fraining documents
(Attachment L), which includes a statement that the employees were trained to use
the chamber in 2005. To ensure safety, security, incident response and regulatory
compliance, all select agent personnel will be required to be retrained by June 1,
2007,

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42 CFR § 73.12]. Aside Jrom the standard
policies, procedures, and protocols for emergency situations established by the
Jacility director, appropriate special policies and procedures should be developed
as needed and approved by the Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee
(IACUC) and the Institutional Biosafety Committee (IB C) [BMBL: 41).

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation that the
animal work that had been performed using the aerosol chamber located in room

dcated in building since October of 2005 was approved by the
Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) of TAMU. Please provide a copy of any
IBC minutes approving the project including a list of the [BC members, date the
project was approved, the Justification for this approval, and the date(s) of the
approval,

Texas A&M Response: Attachment C contains IBC documentation that animal
work was approved. The work was reviewed before IBC guidelines for
documentation were clearly established. All select agent work is being re-reviewed
this year.

Upon discovery of a release of an agent or toxin causing occupational exposure
or release of a select agent or toxin outside of the primary barriers of the
biocontainment area, an individual or entity must immediately notify CDC or
APHIS [42 CFR § 73.19 (b]. An Individuol or entity must adhere to the
Jollowing security requirements or implement measures to achieve an equivaleny
or greater level of security: Require that individuals wirh access approval from
the HHS Secretary or Administrator immediately report any of the Jollowing to
the Responsible Official, any release of a select agent or toxin [42 CFR § 73.11

(d)(7)(iv)].
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occupational exposure.

Request_for supplemental information: Pleagse explain why the alternate
Responsible Officials failed 1o immediately report the Occupational exposure to
the DSAT as required by 42 CFR §73.19 (b).

In addition, there was some question on-the part of one ARQ as to whether an
occupational exposure inside biocontainment constituted a “release”. The BSO

In June 2006, the reporting requirements for incident response were clearly
established and since then the Office of Research Compliance has been
responsible for processing this information with input from the BSO and
Principal Investigator, on behalf of the Responsible Official (RO).  After
discovering in April 2007, that this incident was not reported properly, we have
reviewed our entire program and have clarified the incident reporting procedure
that was established in June 2006,

Request for supplemental information: Please provide a summary of events that
occurred when this email was received by the alternate Responsible Official who
was acting on behalf of the Responsible Officia] including the follow up review
that was conducted as a result of this email report. Please also explain why the
alternate Responsible Official who was acting on behalf of the Responsible
Official did not follow the security protocols outlined in the "TAMU Facilities
and Research Laboratories with Select Agents” security plan.

\(\ Texas A&M Response: When the email was received by the Biosafety

Aﬂ w H\é A Officer/ARO, he reviewed the incident with the PI. He then worked with the
Vs v nstitutional Occupational Health provider to evaluate all other employees who
W, B \’\{“(\G : could have been exposed. Because of the way the event occurred, it was

. (S i W L-‘P\ determined early on, that the €Xposure was a result of the employee reaching into

i v

o ) u\(\ vt attempted to clean it as would have been the normal process. After reviewing
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the incident, the PI and BSO determined that staff should be retrained to ensure

that such an event would not occur again.

This was the first incident that occurred since Texas A&M had registered for the
Select Agent program. The process for handling CDC incident reporting was

CDC. In addition, there was some question on the part of one ARO as to whether

RSN [\»‘*f "‘:“‘ " an occupational exposure inside biocontainment constituted a “release”. The
Ve > TOXMTAMU Facilities and Research Laboratories with Select Agents” security plan,
SN dated February 2006, stated on page 9 that CDC should be notified in the case of

theft or loss of a select agent or toxin. It did not however, address notification of
CDC in the event of a release. Furthermore, it did not specify who at the

as to who had responsibility for reporting, Currently, the Institution reports all
occupational exposures, including elevated titers, to CDC and it has been
established that reporting requirements are the responsibility of the Office of
Research Compliance {ORC().

notification and reporting process. In December 2006, the process established in
June 2006 was followed as a result of an incident that occurred. All required
institutional representatives were nformed, beginning with the RO, the BSO and
the University Police. CDC was contacted and a report followed. The BSO and
University Police immediately investigated with input from the Principal
Investigator and laboratory staff, All plans (safety, security and incident reporting)
were then reviewed by the Investigator, and changes were recommended and
implemented. Staff received training regarding the process for counting animals.

We believe that after establishing the process and clarifying it with the
Investigators in December 2006, we handled the incident based on CDC
standards and requirements

17, An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42 CFR § 73.12].An appropriate medical
Surveillance program is in place.  All personnel receive appropriate
immunizations or tests Jor the agents handled or potentially present When
appropriate, a serum surveillance system should be implemented In Zenerql,
persons who may be at increased risk of acquiring infection, or Jor whom
infection might have serious consequences, are not allowed in the animal Jacility
unless special procedures can eliminate the extra risk Assessment should be
made by the Occupational Health Physician {(BMBL: A3
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Observation: On February 9, 2006, performed
aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus. After
completed the aerosolization cxperiments with Brucella melitensis
and Brucella abortus, she cleaned the aerosolization chamber by wiping down the
rear inside of the chamber with disinfectant. This cleaning technique caused
head and arm to enter into the interior of the front of the chamber and
most likely resulted in occupational exposure to either Brucella
melitensis or Brucella abortys. Based on information provided by to
the CDC Inspectors, no follow-up was conducted by TAMU following her
occupational exposure even though she informed P] Ficht on April 12, 2006 that
she had been diagnosed with brucellosis.

Request for supplemental information: Please describe the medical surveillance
system in place at your entity including the post-exposure protocols and explain

why your entity failed to follow up regarding occupational
exposure.
Texas A&M Response: did not perform aerosolization

Occupational Health and Safety program and is currently being monitored for
Brucellosis serology every six months. Further, Scott & White Occupational
Health Clinic, the Institution’s occupational health provider since 2002, provides
medical support and consultation to the Institution for all individuals enrolled in the
medical surveillance program.

Based upon our assessment of the internal follow up, we recognize and
acknowledge the opportunity to improve our current processes. While the
Investigator contacted the Biological Safety Officer (BSO), and took steps to
identify the problem, a more thorough post-exposure investigation should have
occurred. In the future, the BSO will lead the post-exposure investigation, which

Biosafety Plan, Incident Response Plan, and/or Security Plan and submit any
changes to the IBC for review and approval. After IBC approval, the RO or
designee will determine if a CDC amendment is required.

Additionally, if an incident oceurs, after final disposition, the Office of Research
Compliance (ORC) will convene a meeting of al] Select Agent Investigators and
the Institution’s Select Agent Program personnel. The purpose of the meeting wi]
be to provide this research community the opportunity to share information related
to best practices in lab safety, security, incident planning and regulatory
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compliance, Furthermore, we will pursue peer review by outside researchers
tamiliar with select agent research and operating procedures.

CDC’s statement that “no follow up was conducted by TAMU following her
occupational exposure. ..” is incorrect. On April 21, 2006 a positive diagnosis was
reported to Dr. Ficht and was immediately referred by Dr. Ficht
with concurrence of the BSO, to Scott and White Occupational Health Clinic and
remains to this day under Texas A&M’s medical surveillance program,

18. Establish a protocol for intra-entity transfers under the supervision of an

19.

individual with access approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrator,
including chain-of-custody documents and provisions for safeguarding against
theft, loss, or release [42CFR § 73, Y(a)].

in room ocated of building since October of 2005, was completed in
laboratory room ocated in building -

Request for supplemental information: Please provide the intra-entity transfer
documentation that ensures that a security protocol was in place when these
transfers occurred from laboratory room Building : to room (Building

Texas A&M Response: While the SOP indicates the process for intra-entity
transfers, the Institution utilizes a form to document the chain of custody when a
select agent is transferred between authorized users. This was a transfer of location
only, not a transfer to another authorized individual. Dr. Ficht was authorized to
possess the agent in both locations and the agent never left the possession of the
Investigator. Therefore, Intra-entity transfer documentation was not required,
However, in accordance with the latest CDC Security Plan Template (March 2007),
we will modify our institutional procedures to include movement from one location

or release of a select agent or toxin outside of the primary barriers of the
biocontainment area, an individugl or entity must immediately notify CDC or

APHIS [42 CFR § 73.19 (b)].

Observation. Upon review of clinic records, there were laboratorians identified
with elevated titers to Coxiellg burnetii, the causative agent of Q-fever. On April
24, 2007, Angelia Raines submitted APHIS/CDC Form 3 to report the possible
occupational exposure to Coxiella burnetii
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Texas A&M Response: Occupational Health Records, supplied by Scott & White
Clinic, are included in Attachment N.

as a result of the incident,

Texas A&M Response: Ag part of an Occupational Health Plan, workers with
access to Coxiella burnetii will participate in a periodic serologic analysis for
response to Coxiella burnetii. A serologic sample will be taken prior to work with
virulent Coxiella burnetii as a baseline sample. Scott and White Clinics, the
Occupational health Plan provider, will notify workers of reportable serologic
responses. Personnel will be advised to consult with Scott and White clinicians
about the relationship between serological titer, clinical disease, and treatment
options. Personnel reporting to the PI with clinical Symptoms consistent with acute
Q fever will be advised of the opportunity to consult Scott and White clinicians.

All personnel working with Coxiella burnetii in the BL-3 suites have demonstrated
proficiency in standard microbiological practices and techniques as well ag
practices specific to the suite,

In April 2007, the institution redefined occupational exposures to include elevated
titers is now reporting all such incidents to CDC.,

Request for su lemental information: Please describe corrective measures that
have been implemented in order to prevent future incidents.

Texas A& M Response: The laboratory was completely decontaminated as a
precaution; however, since a common source of exposure was not identified, other
corrective actions were limited to those described above.

Request for supplemental information: Please describe any training that has
been conducted as a result of this incident. Please provide documentation that
training was conducted including the date of the training, a description of the

training,

Texas A& M Response: No additional training has been required at this time.
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Request for su lemental information: Please explain how your incident
response and biosafety plans have been modified as a result of this incident,

Texas A& M Response: Review of the situation indicated that all components of
the SOP for work with the agent are appropriate and ensuring minimal exposure to
agent. . The incident response and biosafety plans have been reviewed and found
appropriate,

Upon discovery of a theft or loss of a select agent or toxin, an individual or entity
must immediately notify CDC or APHIS [42 CFR § 73.19 (a)].

Observation: On January 29, 2006, Angelia Raines, the alternate Responsible
Official reported a mouse that wasg infected with Coxiella burnetii was discovered
missing on 12/21/06. Based on the response from Ms. Raines on 1/18/07, the
DSAT has the following additional questions:

Request for supplemental information; Please explain how "Scot Holster" is
listed on the "Facility Access Log" for Room {Building when he is not
listed as on the "Personnel who are have approved access to Laboratory (1/1 9/G67).¢

Texas A& M Response: CDC was contacted by Angelia Raines on December 21,
2006 and the required form was filed on December 22, 2006. Scot Holster should
have been included on the list of "Personnel who have approved access to
Laboratory (1/19/67)," Although Scot Holster has been approved by DSAT since
2004, our paperwork does not properly reflect the facility in which he is working,
We are currently working with Jim McGee, of the CDC 1o update all of our
information in order to ensure accuracy.

Regquest for supplemental information; Please provide a detailed description of
the follow up conducted by your entity that explains your determination that your
investigation had been "closed" because "the missing mouse was most likely
included in the autoclaved bedding material and disposed." Please provide any logs
or documentations that will support your determination. Since you reported the
incident to local authorities (case #12-06-5068), please provide results of their
investigation.

Texas A& M Response: Attachment O contains the case report for the incident,
which includes details of the follow up.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain how the inventory records
are reconciled as indicated on Section 5B of your approved application. Please
provide a detailed description and supporting documents of how the inventories
were verified during the report of the loss to ensure select agents were safeguarded
against theft, loss, or release.
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Texas A& M Response: Inventoried items, those that are stored (-80 C), are
reconciled annually, with all individual vials inspected for accuracy. Infected
animals are not considered stored, inventoried items. They are considered active
and temporary cultures. Records of these cultures are maintained in research
notebooks and these documents are used to reconcile their number.

Reguest for supplemental information; Please explain what security measures
are in place at your entity to ensure select agents were safeguarded against theft,
loss, or release.

Texas A& M Response: Our entity (Building Rooms . 1s secured
by an approved personnel access system and finger print specific entry only.

Request for supplemental information; Please describe how your security and
incident response plans have been reviewed and revised (if needed) as a result of
your investigation to thig report of loss.

Texas A&M Response: The security and incident response plans were reviewed
and training performed to ensure that personnel are knowledgeable and compliant
with plans.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation regarding
the training that was conducted in follow up to this incident including the date of
the training, a description of the training provided, and the means used to verify
that the employee understood the training,

;I)‘exas A&M Response: Documentation of training can be found in Attachment

An individual or entity required to register under this part must designate an
individual to be the Responsible Official. The Responsible Official muse: (1) Be
approved by the HHS Secretary or Administrator Jollowing a security risk
assessment by the A Horney General, (2) Be Jamiliar with the requirements of this
part, (3) Have authority and responsibility to act on behalf of the entity, (4)

Ensure compliance with the requirements of this part [{2 CFR § 73, a}j).

Request for supplemental information: Based on the above observations noted
during the inspection, please provide documentation that the Responsible Official
is familiar and ensures compliance with the requirements of the select agent
regulations including documentation of the most recent annual inspection
conducted for each laboratory and assurances that no select agent or toxin work is
being performed without the proper oversight.

Texas A& M Response: Attachment F contains information related to the most
recent inspections,



Robbin Weyant, PhD, CAPT, USPHS
May 17, 2007
Page 21

As the RO for Texas A&M University, I am committed to ensuring that the best
possible practices are in place to ensure laboratory safety and security as well as to
maintain public trust. To that end, I have been approved by the HHS Secretary or
Administrator following a security risk assessment by the Attorney General to act
as the RO. I am familiar with the requirements of 42 CFR 73. I have authority and
responsibility to act on behalf of the Texas A&M University, and I have put an
organization in place to ensure compliance with the requirements of 42 CFR 73.

In an effort to improve our program, we recently had an external peer review
conducted by the University of Texas Health Sciences Center at Houston and we
are awaiting a written report. The review was led by UTHSC’s Responsible
Official and Institutional Biosafety Officer, Dr. Robert Emery. Most notably,
based on their preliminary input, I have directed our organization to establish bi-
monthly safety, security and compliance inspections so that I can take steps to
immediately address any issues that compromise the success of our select agent
research program, Other measures to 1mprove our program are also being evaluated
and will be implemented as they are developed, including outside peer researcher
review,

While we are still establishing and increasing vigor in our procedures and training,
I believe that we are building a program of best practices for select agent research.

Sincerely,
t
Jhoed &
Dr. Richard E. Ewing

Enclosures (19)

pe: Micheal D. McKinney, Chancellor
Eddie J. Davis, Interim President
David B. Prior, Executive Vice President and Provost
Jerry R. Strawser, Interim Executive Vice President and Provost
Fuller W. Bazer, Associate Vice President for Research
Charley B.Clark, Associate VP for Risk, Compliance & Advisory Services
John M. Salsman, Director Environmental Health & Safety
Christopher M. Meyer, Assistant VP for Environmental Health & Safety
Brent S. Mattox, Manager Environmental Health & Safety
Angelia M. Raines, Director, Office of Research Compliance
Scott A. Kelly, Deputy General Counsel
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Texas AS&M University

May 25, 2007

Memorandum % z‘ ]
-
From: Dr. Richard E. Ewing

To All employees involved in research using Select Agents
Subject: Mandatory Training

All institutions and individuals that conduct research using select agents and toxins are
required to adhere to federal regulations regarding their possession, use, and transfer, Select
Agents are those identified on the HHS and USDA Seclect Agents and Toxins List and are
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
training will be held on June 1, 2007. Training will begin at 9:00 a.m. and end at 1:00 p.m,
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
8:10 - 9:40 Process for New submissions, Amendments and Veron Tesh/Thomas Ficht and
Annual reviews (including risk assessment Brent Mattox
process and medical surveillance process)
9:40 - 9:45 Approval process prior to accessing an SBAT Angelia Raines
Agent -
9:45-9:50 Approval process prior o accessing a facility Angelia Raines
9:50-10:20 Occupational Health Program including blood Brent Mattox
borne pathogen training
10:20-10-30 Break
10:30 - 11:10 Research Specific Safety Plan /SOPs Jim Samuel
Thomas Ficht -
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
12:20 - 12:50 Incident Response process Bert Kretzschmar and
Brent Mattox
12 :50-12:55 Bi-monthly monitoring Angelia Raines
12:50 p.m. Closing Remarks Fuller Bazer
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Richard Bwing, Responsible Official — 3
Texas A& M University (Registration #C20060605-0489) ¢
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FAX: (979) 845-1855

meaach

i

Subject: Texas A& M University: Repext of Site Visit; Requesi for Additional Elnﬂbrmaté%n?';’”;‘;

On April 11, 2007, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Division of Select Agents and
Toxins (DSAT) recsived the APHIS/CDC Form 3 (Report of Theft, Loss, or Release of Select Agents and
Toxins) from Texas A&M University (TAMU) reporting the occupational exposure to Brucella on February
9, 2006 that resulted in infection of a laboratory worker.

During the period April 16, 2007 through April 18, 2007, the following representatives from the CDC visited
TAMU located at 1112 TAMU, College Station, TX 77843:

Diane Martin, Lead Inspector
Richard Henkel, Biosafety Manager
Melissa Resnicl, Epidemic Jntelligence Service Officer

Individuals from TAMU present during the site visit included:

Richard Ewing, Vice President {VP) of Research, Responsible Official
Angelia Raines, Dir-Office of Researci Com pliance, alternate Responsible Official
Jokn Salsman, Director, Environmental Health and Safety Department {EHSD)
Brent Mattox, Biosafety Officer, EHSD, alternate Responsible Official

Chris Meyer, Asst. VP, Safety & Security

Tiffany Agnew, Environmental Biosafety Program Coordinator

Thomas Ficht, Professor, Principal Investigator

L.G. Adams, Associate Dean, Principal Investigator

Angels Arenas, Graduate Student ‘

Christine McFariand, Research Associate

Tianwu Pei, Assistant Research Scientist

Linda Clark, Assistant Executive Direclor, Scott & White Clinic

Jack Crouch, Occupational Medicine Supervisor, Scott & White Clinic
Melissa Kahl-McDonagh, Postdoctoral Research Fellow

The purpose of the site visit was to (1) review the events surrounding the occupational exposure to Brucella
that occmred on February 9, 2006 in Room fBuilding d assess the measures implemented 1o
prevent ofber such incidents; (2) assess measures implemented by TAMU to protect the staff and public from
exposure to pathogenic microorganisms; and (3} and to otherwise evaluate your entity's compliance with (ks
select agent regulations (7 C.F.R. part 331, 9 C.F.R. part 121, 42 C.F.R. part 73},
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Overview of the incident:

The incident occusred in Building Room  on the TAMU mein campus, A [ree-standing
aerosolization chamber is located in this room. At the time of the incident, the room was shared by three
rescarch groups, involving work with Mycobacterium, Coxiella burnetii, Brucella melitensis, Brucella suis,
aud Brucella abortus. The room is not currently authorized by DSAT for the perfonnance of aerosolization
experiments with Brucella melitensis, Brucella suis, and Brucella abortus. Based on conversations with the
taboratory workers present during the February 9, 2006 occupational exposure, |
researcher from the Mycobacrerium group who frequently uses the chamber, was asked to assist Melissa
Kahl-McDonagh and her fellow Brucella researchers with loadin g and operation of the chamber, ~

has not received solect agent access approval from the DSAT. did not receive
training to perform aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis, Brucella suis, and Brucella abortuy.
Aflter rompleted the aerosolization experiraents with Brucella melitensis and Brucella aborius,
she cleaned the aerosolization chamber with disinfectant. This cleaning technique causec
head and arm to enter into the interior of the chamber most likely resulted ir 5 occupational
exposure o either Brucella melitensis or Brucella abortus. According 1o laboratorians present during the
experiments, the aerosol chainber was not disinfected between the aerosolization experiments with Brucelly
melitensis and Brucella abortus.

According to a log kept by . she first felt il on March 25, 2006. On Apri) 12, 2006, she
informed Principal Investigator (P1) Dr. Tom Ficht that she had been diagnosed with brucellosis, with
isolation of Brucella melitensis on April 16, 2006 by the Texas State Public Health Laboratory. She also filed
a workman’s compensation claim with Texas Ad, M University . returned to work on April
24, 2006. On April 21, 2006, PY Ficht sent an e-mail (sec Aftachment #2) to alternate Responsible Official
Brent Mattox and alternative Responsiblc Officiz] Angelia Raines, and the IBSP Coordinator, Tiffany Agnow,
lo notify them of the oceupational exposure that resulted in being diagnosed with
brucellosis,

Site visit:

On the merning of April 16, 2007, CDC representatives met with the Responsible Official, Dr. Richard Bwing
and alternate Responsible Official Angelia Raines. The CDC representatives requested the following:
All documents requested by DSAT in a fax sent to TAMU on April 13, 2007 (see Attachment #3),
¢ All records related fo the reported cccupational exposure including any updates to training, security
plan, incident response plan, and the biosafety plan as a result of the incident, incident/corrective
action report, access logs to the area and animal health records,
¢ Access to individuals invelved with the reported February 9, 2006 occupational exposure to conduct
interviews.
o Access {o inspect room .n building wheve the reported occupational exposure had occurred.

The CDC representatives interviewed the foliowing individuals:

o Richard Ewing, Vice President of Research, Responsible Official
Angelia Raines, Dir-Office of Research Compliance, alternate Responsible Official
Brent Mattox, Biologica) Safety Officer, Environmental Health and Safety (EHS)
John Salsman, Director, EMS
Thomas Ficht, Principal Investigator

Graduate Student

Jianwu Pei, Assistant Research Seientist
Linda Clark, Assistant Executive Director, Scatt & White Clinie
Jack Crouch, CGccupaticnal Medicine Supervisor, Scolt & White Clinic
Melissa Kahl-McDonagh, Postdoctoral Researcl)
Christine McFarland, Research Associate

® @ © 4 ® ©p © ©o @ o
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Enclosed as attachment | to this letter please find a list of observations and accompanying reguests for
supplemental information concerning the occupational exposure to Brucella that occurred on February 9,
2006 in Room of Building at TAMU. The DSAT should receive the supplemental information by
close of business May 18, 2007,

The DSAT inspects each registered facility (o ensure that it meets the appropriate safety and security
standards, as well as record-keepin g requirements, found in 42 CFR Part 73 (“Possession, Use and Transfer of
Select Agents and Toxins; Final Rule™), Please be advised that the HHS Secretary may revoke a certificate of
registration if the entity fails to comply with the provisions of 42 CFR Part 73 (See¢ 42 CF.R, § 73.8). On
April 20, 2007, the DSAT faxed TAMU the “Cease and Desist Order” 1o immediately cease and desist frony:

o The vse of Room 3uilding Texas A&M University, for any and all manipulations and
storage of Brucella abortus, Brucella melitensis, sud Brucella suis until such time as a request for the
amendment of the Texas A&M University's certificate of registration has been properly submitted by
the Texas A&M University and approved by the Division of Select Agents and Toxins (DSAT),
Centers for Disease Conwrol and Prevention (CDC) in accordance with 42 CEFR part 73.

o The experimental aerosolization of any select agent or toxin performed at the Texas A&M Unversity.

°  Allowing nccess to seicet agents and toxins by any individual who has not been approved for such
access by the DSAT following a security risk assessment by the Aitorney Genera! of the United
States.

The DSAT will notify TAMU of any changes to this “‘cease and desist order™ status.

Should you have further questions concerning this correspondence or the requirements of 42 CFR 73, please
refer to our web site at http:/fwww.cde.gov/od/sap/ or contact Diane Martin, Lead Inspector with this office
by mail at: Division of Select Agents and Toxins, 1600 Clifton Road, MS A-46, Atlanta, GA 30333, or by
phone at (404) 718-2031, or fax at (404) 718-2096,

PT, USPHS

Robbin Weyant, PhD, @7
Director

Division of Select Agents and Toxins

Cocrdinating Office of Terrorism Preparedness and
Emecgency Response
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Observations noted on April 16, 2007 throuph April 18, 2007 at TAMU (Page numbers from the BMBL
or 42 CFR Part 73 specifying each requirement aro given in parentheses).

Chservations:

1.

3.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must maintain complere records relating
to the activities covered by this part, Such records must include: Information about all entries into
avens contgining select ngenis or foxins, including the name of the individuat, name af the escort
(if applicable), and date und time of entry (42 CFR § 73 17(a)(4)].

Observation: At the time of the inspection, there was no record of aceess to room located in
bullding |, being kept during the time the room was used for work with select agents.

Reguest for supplemental infermation: Please provide an explanation as to why entries into room

143 were not being recorded as required undey §73.17 (Records) and how your entity will comply
with all the requirements of §73.17,

4 certificate of registration may be amended to reflect changes in circumstances (e.g., changes in
the activities involving any select agenis or toxins, or the addition or removal of select ugents or
toxins)(1) Prior to any change, the Responsible Official must apply for an amendment to u
certificate of registration by suhmitting the relevant page(s) of the registration application. {42
CFER§ 73, 700 (1)),

Observation: Documentation provided o the CDC Inspectors indicated twelve aerosol experiments
with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis had been performed using the aerosol chamber located
inroom ocated in building  : since October of 2005. To date, DSAT has not recetved or
approved an amendinent to update your certificate of registration to include these activities for room

In addition, your entity was notified on June 7, 2006 (see Amendment #4) that prior to any
changes in the activities involving select agents, the entity’s certificate of registration must be
amended tfo include this work with select agents such as aerosolization experiments and that this
amendment must be epproved by DSAT prior 10 any work being performed.

Reguest for supplemental information: Please explain why your enity failed to submit an

amendment and receive approval from DSAT prior to the twelve aerosol experiments with Brucella

abortus and Brucella melitensis that had been performed vsing the aerosol chamber located in room
since October of 2003,

An individaal or entity required fv register under this part may not provide an individual (1ecess fo
a select agent or toxin, and en individual may not access @ select agent ov 1oxin, unfess the
individual is approved by the HHS Secretary or Administrator, follo wing a security risk
assessment by the Attorney General {43 CFR §73.10(a)].

Observation: On February 9, 2006, - who has not received access approval
from the DSAT, performed aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella aborius.
After completed the acroselization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucelly
aborius, she cleaned the aerosolization chamber by wiping down the rear inside of the chamber with
disinfectant. This cleaning technique caused head and arm to enter into the interior
of the chamber, most likely resuiting in occupational exposure to either Brucelly
melitensis or Brucella abortus.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide an explanation regarding this apparent

allowance of unauthorized access to sefect agents including: (1) Has your entity allowed other
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unauthorized access to select agents to other individuals and who are the individuals who had
unnuthorized access to select agents, along with dates, times, and select agents associated with other
incidents of unauthorized access; (2) If your entity has been allowing unauthorized access to select
agents besides this incident, what immediate actions have you taken to ensure that these individuals
no longer have access; (3) What is your entity’s plan of action to agsure prevention of similar events
from occurring; and, (4) During the unauthorized gccess, how was the seject agent safeguarded
against theft, loss, or release (see 42 CF. R, § 73.11(a)) during this allowance of unauthorized access
to select agents.

4. Each individual with access to select agents or foxins must have the appropriate education,
training, and/or experience tu handle or use such ngents or toxins {42 CFR § 73.10(c)]. An
individual o entity required 1o register under this part imust provide information and tratning on
biosafety and security to euch individual wirh access approval from the HHS Secretary or
Administrator before he/she has such access. In addition, an individual or entity must Provide
information and traiping on biosafety and security to each individual not approved for access from
the HHS Secretary or Administrator before he/She works in or visits areas where select agenis pf
toxins are handled ov stored (e. & laboratovies, growth chambers, animaf rooms, greenhouses,
storage areas, efc,). The training must address the particuler needs of the individual, the work they
will do, and the risks posed by the select agents o toxins. (42 CFR 73.15(w)]

Observation; On February 9, 2006, -performed acrosolization experiments
with Brucella melitensis and Brucella aborius, According to e did not receive

training or have any experience in handling Brucella melitensis, Brucells abortus or Brucella suis.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide an explanaiion why did not

receive the appropriate training prior to her work with select agents. Based on this incident, please
deseribe your entity’s plan of action to assure that all individuals who work or visit areas where select
agents or toxins are handled or stored wil| be provided appropriaie trainjng.

5. Anindividual or entity may nor condisct o restricted experiment with a HHS select agent or toxin
unless upproved by and conducted in accordunce with any conditions prescribed by the FHS
Secretary. In addition, an individual op entity muay not conduct a restricied experiimernt with an
overlap select ngent or toxin unless approved by and conducted in accordance with any conditions
prescribed by the HHS Secretary, after consultation with Administrator. Restricted experiments:
Experiments utilizing recombinani DNA that involve the deliberate transfer of o drug resistance
Irait to select agents that are nor kmown fo acquive the trait natusally, if such acquisition could
compromise the use of the drug to control divease agenis ln humans, veterinary medicine, or
agriculture (42 CFR §73.13 (a),(8)(1)}.

Obsexvation; According to laboratory personnel interviewed by the CDC Inspectors, Dr. Ficht had
conducted restricted experiments utilizing recombinant DNA that involve the deliberate tansfer of n
drug resistance trait to select agents that are not known to acquire the trait naturally, if such
acquisition could compromise the use of the drug 1o contral disease agents in humans, veterinary
medicine, or agriculture {see 42 C.FR. § 73.13(b)(1)). Specifically, experiments conducted by Dr.
Ficht that involved the introduction of plasmids containing kanamycin and chloramphenicol
resistance cassettes used as selectable markers in Brucella melirensis, Brucella abortus and Brucella
suis. Pleasc note that during the February 2005 inspection of your entity, the inspectors identified
that PI Tsolis’s standard operating procedures indicated restricted experitnents being conducted and
that this work was not reflected on the PI’s statement of work for your entity’s certification of
registration. On April 11, 2005, you responded that “PI Tsolis’ recombinant antibiotic resistance
work has ceased and is not cunvently planned (see Attachment #5). If this type of work is considered
in the future, an amendiment to update the current registration for PI Tsalis will be submitted to the
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Request for supplemental information: Please provide a detailed description of al) select agent

wark being conducted by Pls at your entity; describe why any restricted experiments have been
performed at TAMU without approva) from DSAT, and what steps the entity will take to prevent
reoceurrence of a restricted experiment being conducted without approval from the DSAT. Also,
please provide a list of all select agent strains currently possessed by TAMU in which antibiotic
resistance markers have been introduced using recombinant DNA techniques. In addition, please
include a copy of any Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) minutes for all projects that volve
select agents and toxins including a list of the IBC members, date the project was approved, and the
justification for this approval.

6. An individual or entlty must adhere o the Sollowing security requirements or implement measures
to achieve an equivaleny or preater level af security: Allow access only 1o individuals with gecess
approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrutor {42 CFR §73 11(d)(1)).

Observation; On February 9, 2006, . Who has not received access appraval
from the DSAT, performed aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus.
After completed the aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucelia
abortus, she cleaned ihe aeyosolization chamber by wiping down the rear inside of the chamber with
disinfectant, This cleaning technique caused head and arm to enter into the interior
of the chamber, most likely resulting in occupational exposure to either Brucellg
melitensis or Brucella abortus,

Request for supplemental information: As your eatity’s security plan states in section C (Personnel
Secvrity) that “only DOJ authorized persons will have access to select agents,” please provide an
explanation regarding this apparent allowance of unauthorized access to select agents even though
this practice deviates from the current policy outlined in your security plan,

7. Anindividual or entity requived {o register snder this part must develop and implement o written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or wxin, given irs intended use, [42
CFR §73.12]. Ventilation should be provided in accordance with eriteria Jrom the Guide for Care
and Use of Laboratory Animals. A ducted exhaust air ventilation system is provided. This spstem
crentes directional aleflow which draws air inio the laboratory from “clean” areas towurd
“contaminated” aveas. The exhansi air is not vecireulated to any other arew of the building,
Filtration and other treatments of the exhiaust wiv may not be required, but should be considered
based on site requirensenis, and specific agent manipulations and use conditions, The exhaust
must be dispersed away from occupied areas and air intakes, or the exhoust must be HEPA-

Siltered. Personnel muse verify that the direction of the airflow (into the animal arens) is proper. I
is recommended thet a visyal fnonitoring device that indicates and confivms disectional inward
atrflow be provided at the animal room entry. Consideration should be given to installing an
HVAC control system to prevent sustnined positive pressurization of the animal spaces. Audible
ularms should be considered 1o notify personnel of HVAC system Jallure [Biusafety in
Microbivlogical and Biomedical Laboratories (BMBL): D8/,

Observation: For room ocated in building » the CDC Inspectors were unable to verify that
the room had proper directional airflow at the time of the inspection because the visual monitoring
system used to confirm directional airflow for the room was not functioning praperly.

Request for supplemental information: As the CDC Inspectors were not able to confirm that the
room had directiona] airflow, please previde documentation that room has a functional visual
monitoring device and that the directional airflow is from “clean” area toward “contaminated” area,
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& Anindividaal or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement @ written
biosafety plan tht is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [12
CFR §73.12). The comploted Biosafety Level 3 focility design and uperational procedures must be
documented. The facility must be tested Jor verification that the design and uperational paramerers
have been met prior to operation. Facilities should be reverified at least annually agninst these
procedures as modified by operational experience (BMBL: D14).

Observation: The entity did not provide documentation for room located in building Jhat
annual verification was performed to ensure that the laboratory meets the design and operational
parameters,

Request foy supplemental information; Please provide this documentation,

9. Anindividual or entity required to register under this pars must develap and implement a written
biosafety plan that Is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended yse. /42
CFR §73.12]. Eguipment and work surfaces in the room ure routinely decomtominated with asn
effective disinfeciant after work with the infectious agent, and especially after overt spifls, splashes,
or other contamination by infectious marerials (BMBL: A7].

Observation: During the inspection of the aerosol chamber, the CDC Inspectors noted that the
interior and exterior of the chamber contained a significant amount of animal hair.

Request for supplemental information: Please verify standard operating procedures that pravide
documentation that the chamber is routinely decontaminated with an effective disinfectant after work
with the infectious agent to ensure removal of all contaminated materials, including hair and animal
waste and explain if there was a deviation in standard protocols, what steps you will take to ensure
that standard protocols are followed.

10. An individual or entity required to register under this pare must develop and implement o weiften
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, piven ifs intended use, [42
CFR §73.12}. Continuous Slow centrifuges or other equipment that may produce aerosols ave
contained in devices that exhaust gir through HEPA filters before discharge into the laborarory.
These HEPA systews ave tested at least annually, Alternatively, the exhaust from such equipmieny
may be venied fo the outside if it dispersed away from occupicd areas and air intakes (BAMBL: bilf

Observation: According to documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, the HEPA systems of the
aerosol chamber located in room are not routinely verified or tested to ensure that the HEPA
filters provide adequate protection, Dr. David McMurray provided documentation to the CDC
Inspectors that the routine maintenance of the Madison Aerosol Chamber indicated that testing of the
HEPA system is not necessary.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documnentation from the manufacturer

regarding HEPA systein maintenance to support this statement,

. An lndividual or entity required 1o register under this part must develop and implement a written
bivsafety plan ther is commensurate with the risk of the aigent or toxin, given its intended use. [42
CFR §73.12}. All manipulations of infectious materials, necropsy of infected animals, harvesting
of tissues or fluids from infected animals or embryonale eggs, etc. are conducted in a Class IT or
Class IHT biological safety cabinet {BMBL: C57

Observation: The CDC Inspectors noted that the design of the chamber is such that after the acrosol
chatlenge, the nebulization unit containing infections material must be disassembled in the lnhoratory
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12.

13.

14,

and not in the biosafely cabinet.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation that safety procedures are

established and followed to minimize the risk for laboratorians disassembling the nebulization unit
containing infectious material.

The biosafety and comtainmeny procedures must be sufficient fo contain the select agent or toxin
(e.g., physical siructure and features 0f the entity, and operational and procedural sufeguards (42
CFR § 73.12(b)]).

Observation: Documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors indicated twelve agrosof experiments
with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis had beey performed using the aerosof chamber Jocated
inroom - ocated in building since Gctober of 2005. The CDC Inspectors were informed that
the established biosafety protocols for work with Mycobacterivm were used for the aerosol
experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation of (1) the dated risk
assessment that was performed that indicated the bicsafety procedures for work with Mycobacterium
was sufficient to be used for the aerosol experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus;
(2) risk assessments for all select agent work being conducted by Pls at your entity to ensure that the
biosafety and containment procedures are sufficient to contain the selecs agent or toxin, and (3) the
procedures of how visk assessments are conducted to ensure that the biosafety and containment
procedures are sulficient to contain the select agent or toxin,

An individaal or entity requived to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42
CFR §73.12]. When aprocedure or process cannot be conducted within a biological sufety
cabinet, then uppropriate combinations of personal protective equipment (e.g. respirators, face
shields) and physical containment devices are used [BMBL: C5]

Observation: On February 9, 2006, aerosolization experiments were performed with Brucella
melitensis and Brucella abortus. According to interviews with the laboratorians present during these
experiments, the CDC Inspectors were to]d that the personal protective equipment being used
consisted of an N-95 respirator, safety glasses with splash guards, tyvek suits and gloves. Based on
the CDC Inspectors questions 1o the laboratorians about quantitative or qualitative fit testing for the
N-95 respirators, the CDC Inspectors determined that none of these individuals had been fit tested
with the N-95 respirators. In addition, the CDC Inspectors received documentation that annual
respirator fit testing is ot performed for all laboratory workers that use N-95 respirators,

Request for supplemental information: Please provide an explanation why laboratory workers are
not tested to ensure that the N-95 respirator being used provides adequate respiratory protection.

Observation: The “Operating Procedures for the Biosafety Laboratory Suite, Veterinary Research
Building” document dated 2/22/07 that was provided to the CDC Inspectors states that N-95
respirators are used for aeroso! studies. This contradicts the undated risk assessment document that
was provided to the CDC Inspectors which states that powered air purifying respirators should be
used.

Request for supplemental inforimation: Pleass explain this discrepancy,

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafely plan that is cammensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use, [42
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15.

16.

CIR §73.12). Laboratory and support personnel receive appropriale training on the potential
hazards associated with the work involved, the Becessary precautions are incorporated into
standard eperating procedures. Personnel are advised of special hazards and are required 1o read
and follow instructions on practices and procedures [BMBL: B7f

Qbservation: The entity did not provide documentation that individuals operating the aerosol
chamber had recejved lraining to ensure safety procedures were followed during opetation of the
chamber for the twelve acrosol experiments with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis that had
been performed wsing the aerosol chamber located in room located in building  since October
of 2005, The entity did not provide documentation that individuals operating the aerosol chamber had
received training to ensure safety procedures were followed during opcration of the chamber,

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation that training was conducled
including the date of the training, a description of the training provided, and the means used to verify
that the employee understood the training,

An individual or entity required to register under this part musi develop and bnplement u written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the visk of the agent or toxin, given ifs intended use. [42
CFR §73.12]. Aside from the standard poficies, pracedures, and protocols for energency
situations established by the fucility direcior, appropriute special policies and procedures should be
developed as needed and approved by the Institutional Animal Care and Use Conunitiee (IACUC)
and the Institutional Biosafety Conmittee (IB C) [BMBE: 41}

Request for supplemmental information: Please provide documentation that the animal work that

had been performed using the aerosol chamber located in room ‘ocated in building  since
October of 2005 was approved by the Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) of TAMU. Please
provide a copy of any IBC minutes approving the project including a list of the TBC members, date
the project was approved, the justification for this approval, and the date(s) of the approval.

Upon discovery of 4 releuse of an agent o toxin crusing occupartional exposure ov release of a
select agent or toxin outside of the primary harviers of the biocontainment area, an individual or
entity must Smmediarely notify CDC or APHIS [42 CFR §73.19 (b)]. An Individual or entity must
adhere lo the following security requirements ar implement measures to achieve an equivalent or
greater level of secuvity: Require that individuals with access approval from the HHS Secretary or
Administrator Immediately repor( any of the following o the Responsible Official, any release of u
select agent or toxin (42 CFR §73.11 (4){7)(iv)).

Observation: Based on documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, PI Ficht sent an e-mail on

~ April 21, 2006 to alternate Responsible Official Brent Mattox and alternate Responsible Official

Angelia Raines that notified them of ccupational exposure.

Request for suppicmental information; Please explain why the alternate Responsible Officials
failed to imimediately report the occupational exposure to the DSAT as required by 42 CFR §73.19

(b).

Request for supplemental information: Please provide a summary of events that oceurred when this
email was received by the alternate Responsible Official who was acting on behalt of the Responsible
Official including the follow up review that was conducted as a result of this e-mail report. Please
also explain why the alternate Responsible Official who was acting on behaif of the Responsible
Official did not follow the security protocols outlined in the “TAMU Facilities and Research
Laboratoties with Select Agents” security plan,
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VT An individual or entity required to rogister under this part must develop and implement a writen
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or foxin, given its intended use, {42
CFR §73.12]. An appropriate medical surveillunce prograrm is Int place. All personnef receive
appropriate rununizations or tests for the agents handled or botentiolly present. When
appropricte, & seruin surveillance systews should be implemented, In general, persons who may be
at ipcreased risk of acquiring infection, or for whom infection might have serious consequences,
are not allowed in the animal facility unless special procedures can eliminate the extra risk,
Assessment shoutd be made by the Oceupational Health Physician (BMBL: A3].

Observation: On February 9, 2006, performed aercsolization experiments
with Brucella melitensis and Bruceflla abovtus. After compleied the aerosolization

experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus, she cleaned the aerosolization chamber
by wiping down the rear inside of the chamber with disinfeetant, This cleaning techninue caused
head and arm to enter into the interior of the chamber and most likely resulted )
occupations] exposure to either Brucella melitensis or Brucella abortus. Rased on
information provided by to the CDC Inspectors, no follow up was conducted by
TAMU following her occupational exposure even though she informed PT Ficht on Apri! 12, 2006
that she had been diagnosed with bruceilosis.

Request for supplemental information: Please describe the medical surveitlance system in place at
your entity including the post-exposure prolocols and explain why your entity failed to follow up
regarding ccoupational exposure.

18. Establish a protoco! for intra-entity transfers under the supervision of an individual with access
approval from the HES Secretary or Administrator, including chain-of-custody documents and
provisions for safeguarding against theft, loss, of release [92CFR § 73.9(a)}.

Ohservation: Based on documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, the preparation of test
samples for the twelve aerosol experiments with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis that had
been performed using the aerosol chamber located in room seated of building since October
of 2005, was completed in laboratory room ocated in building

Reguest for supplemental information: Please provide the intra-entity transfer documentation that
ensures that a security protocol was in place when these transfers oceurred from laboratory room
(building J 10 room building

19. Upon discovery of u release of an agent ov toxin causing vecupational exposure or release of u
select agent or toxin ourside of the primary barriers of the biocontainmeni area, an individual or
entity must immediatedy notify CDC or APHIS [42 CFR §73.19 (b)].

Observation: Upon review of clinic records, there were laboratorians identificd with elevated titers
to Coxiella burnerii, the causative agent of Q-fever. On April 24, 2007, Angeliz Raines submitted
APHIS/CDC Forin 3 to report the possible occupational exposure to Coxiella burnetii,

Reguest fox supplemental information: Pleasc provide occupational health records including the
baseline titers pertaining to the exposed individuals that are related to this incident. In addition,
please provide the recotds for John Park, Gordon Draper, Laura Quinlivan, Willielmina Bochout,
Joshua Hill, Katia Mertens, Kasi Russel-Lodrigue, Jared Barker and James Samuel.

Request for supplemental informarion: Please provide a copy of the inedical surveillance plan and
describe the foilow up that was conducted based on the plan as a result of the incident.
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Request for supplemental information; Please describe corrective measures that have been
implemented in order to prevent future incidents.

Request for supplemental information: Plense describe any training that has been conducted as a

result of this incident. Please provide documentation that training was conducted including the date
of the training, a description of the training provided, and the means used to verify that the employee
understood the training.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain how your incident response and biosafety

plans have been modified as a result of this incident,

20. Upon discovery of a theft oF loss of a select agent or Voxin, on individual oy entify must immediately
notify CDC or APHIS {42 CFR §73.19 (a)].

Observation; On January 29, 2006, Angelia Raines, the alternate Responsible Official reported 2
mouse that was infeeted with Coxiella burnetii was discovered missing on 12/21/06. Based on the
response from Ms. Raines on 1/18/07, the DSAT has the following additional questions:

Reguest for supplemental information: Elease explain how “Scot Holster” is ligted on the “Facility
Access Log” for Room Building . when he is not listed as on the “Personne! who are haye
approved access to Lab (1/19/07).”

Request for supplemental information: Please provide a detfailed description of the follow up
conducted by your entity that explaing your determination that your investigation had been “closed”
because “the missing mouse was most likely included in the autoclaved bedding material and
disposcd.” Please provide any logs or documentations that will suppoit your detennination. Since
you reported the incident to Jocal authorities (case #12-06-5068), please provide results of their
investigation.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain how the inventory records are reconciled as
indicated on Section 5B of your approved application. Please provide a detailed description and
supporting documents of how the inveniories were verifiad during the report of the Joss to ensure
select agents were safeguarded against theft, loss, or release.

Request for supplementa] informsation: Please explain what security measures ave in place al your

entity 10 ensure select agents were safeguarded against theft, Joss, or release.

Request for supplemental information; Please describe how your security and incident response
plans have been reviewed and revised (if needed) as a result of your investigation to this report of
loss.

Reqguest for supplemental information: Please provide documentation regarding the training that
was condueted in follow up to this incident meluding the date of the training, a description of the
training provided, and the means used to verify that the employee understood the {raining,

21, An individual vr entity required to register under this part must desipnate an individual (o be the
Responsible Official. The Responsible Official must: (1) Be approved by the HHS Secretary or
Administrator following a sccurity risk asseysment by the Artorney General, (2) Be Samiliar with
the requirements of this part, (3) Have astthority and responsibility to acr on behalf of the entity, (4)
Ensure compliance with the requirements of this part {42 CFR § 73.9(a))).

Request for supplemental information; Based on the above observations noted during the inspection,
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please provide documentation that the Responsible Official is familiar and ensures compliance with the
requirements of the select agent regulations including documentation of tlte most recent annual inspection
conducted for each Jaboratory and assurances that no select agent or toxin work is being performed
without the proper oversight.
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From) Tom Ficht <tlctt@evm. tagi. edys

Yo "Mattox, Brenf g° <bsmatiox@famu.edy>, Angalia Raires
(Maines@vpmail,lamu.eduz Tiffany Agnew. <HragnewiRizmy.adys
Diate: AR21/2008 1:28:18 Fy

Subject: FW: Workmen's Compensation

> Brent

-3

> hwanied to fet von know tat ' o - fey beer disgnased with

> brucetlosis, dpparently Coniracied fhe tisshse duringan

> Bxpermantal chaflengs af (CMP) én the ninth of Februgry 2008, At thim
>HMma alang with De, Mefturray were Iraining. ug in the use of the

> Madisers chamber foy derosc! Inoeutationg.

%

, +has bean home sick fop several weaks baing teatey by her parsonat
> physiclan and was only recently ditgnosad, | heard akout this fas{ week
> {Man or Tues) and instricted other pérsonne) prasent at thgt thallengs g
> have an an Mnediste blaod draw far teating. The rasults shauld e
> available In another weak or b,
>

>We do nét know the sxact GBLSE Of SHpoOsUNS, Hiitugh we g5sume
>t may have accurred ss a resul of ctedtting out the Mudison chsmbar aftér
> 20 aodol run, In the futurs we plan te fusiiite chambar With

> {n the inltal aerosol trials We rglied: on the expgriance of the T8

> rekaarchers for thy teval of precaution typically empioyed in such

> experiments, it i suspectag

> {hal a tonjuactivg) raute bf infection (s rasponsible for

> infection, perhaps as a resul of manusily cleaning the Madigan chambagy,
it Is my fauh for pot récoghizing the differencas betwsen Rrugalls and

» Mycobacteria [n TEgArd to riwtey of infection,

-3

> An isplation was mude fom g bfeod culture by i physlelar any

> sent fo TOH for confirmatian, (¢ would be haipful if EHSD couly ferjunsted
> 4 sample of thls isolats far Guiture confirtation hare,

-

»

» - . -

> Themas A, Flchit, Ph.D.

> Professor

> Velarinary Pathobiclogy

> Texas A&M University

> 4487 Tamb

> Culiege Station, T 77843-4487 .

> 970.845.4148 ph ‘
> BY B-BE2-1088 fax

Attachmsnl 2
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| gé DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Pubtic Heaith Secvige
g e Centers for Disease Contro]
and Prevention {CDC)
Adlanta (GA 30333

Aprit 13, 2001

Richard Bwing, Responsible Official

Texas A& W] Uruversity (Registration #C20060605-0489)
1500 Research Parkway, Suite BIS0, TAMU 1186
College Statden, TX 778431183

Fax: (979) §52.3176

Subject: 42 C\RR. § 73.19 (Notification of thef, loss, or release)
Dewr Dr. Ewing:

This i to acknowledge the teceipt of the APHIS/ACDC Form 3 (Report of Theft, Loss, or Relense of
Select Agents and Toxins) from Texes A&k M University dwied April 11, 2607 that reported an
occupational exposure to Brucelly. Based upon the review of the repart, the Centers for Discase
Cantrol and Prevention (CDC), Bivision of Select Agents and Toxins (DSAT) hias additional
guestions:

1. Please provide a copy of the medical sutveillance plaa and describe how the follow up was

' conducted as a result of the incident.

2. Pleage provide all occupntions) health resords perfaiming to the exposed individuals 2nd any
individuals that have prasented with symploms associated with possible exposars to
Coxiella, Beucelly, or Mycobaeteriton tubercrlosts,

3. Please provide dogumenitation in regards 10 the risk assessment that was preformed for work
with Brucelld.

4. Ylease deseribe the decontamination proceduves used for the acrosol chamber and any
modifications incorpbrated to these procedures as s rosult bf this incident,

5. Please provids all standard opsating procedures {SOPs) and ecrlifipation documents as it
relates (o the aerosol chamber,

6. Please provide 2 surmpry of events that octired with this intidmt ncluding the follow-up
eview (hat your exfify conducted to ggsime that any ofher simijar incidents do pot vecurred.

7. Since your eufity failed ta mieet the reporting requitements of 42 C.F.R. § 73,19, please
provide a plan of how Texas A& M University will achieve compliance with 42 CF.R. 73,
In addition, please exphiin if your entity faited to roet other requived foderal and state
TEpQIting regiireatents.

8. Plesse provide access lngs for Room and all rooms were work with Brucella is
performed.

9. Please explain how you ingident response plan, security plan, and biosafety plan have been
modifed 25 a resalt of this incident,

This dotument Jg Interded fur e oxtlusive use of (he ratipluntis] hamad ebove. 1l may contein vapefive Information that Iy protecled, privilaged,
or confidentisl, and il shoutd rol be disderinated, distdbuied, of copisg Lo petsdnk ndl-asthiarized 1p 1etaiva sueh Injarmelion, 3you otd hel the
inlenadad recipient(s), aiy dissemination, distribollon, or tapying is sticlly drohibited. you Loink you have recsived thig doceman in amror, pleass
nofy the seader immrediatsly ond desiroy the original.

Altachinent #3
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10, Please provide any personal protettive equipment of enury requiremnentis that may be vesded
prior tg entry into your Jaborajories,

11. Please provide any decuments regarding anexpeoted animal ilnoss.

I2. Please provide an esscsstnent 6f fhe risks of continuing (o wtifize the asroso! chamber.

13. Please provide a detail description 5 the measures implemented to protect the emjrloyeds
from exposures while deconiaminating the asross] chamber § neluding any sahanced personal
protective equipment (PPE) wiilized and the medical supveillance activities implermented, The
Jong term follow-up of employees should beincluded in this YESponse,

The DSAT will be conducting an inspection of your entity on April 16, 2007 {0 useess the measures
implermented by Texas Ak M University to protect the staff and public from exXposure to pathsgenic
ticrovrganist, the recasures iniplomented to prevent farther incidents 2nd to evaluate your enuity's
compliance wilh thy select agent vegulations. Please pake available all staff members invelved in
the incident dégeribed in your report dated Apyil 11, 2007 to be interviewed by the inspection team,

On Apiit 16, 2007, the fotlowing represenmtives Fom the CDC will be vi siting Texas Ak M
Duiversity:

Dianc Martin, Lead lngpector
Richard Herkel, Biosafsty Officer
Melisss Resnick, EIS Officer

Please have the response and sny supgoriing docureniailon avalludle for the ingpectors upon
thefr arvival fo your entity on April 16, 2007,

Please contact Lovi Bane, Compliance Officer with the DSAT at 404-71 8-2006 or at the address

fisted below if you have questions.

Robbin Weyant, Phd, CAPT, USPHS

Director

Division of Select Agents and Toxing

Coordivating Office of Terrorism Preparedness and
Emergency Response

Vhig decument ie intentied for Ihe Oxelysive sa of thr rbclitanisy named soove. 1l may coniin sensltivednlormation thit it proldelad, prvileged,
or confiddniiyl, and I should ned Be Yigsémipatae, distibutad, ar copléd 18 pereons as! aulhottzad- g regelve suah Infomiation. I you arg nol the,
inlenged reciplantis), aoy disteminalion, 4tibufion, or copying is slriclly proripliag. If you fhink oy have secafved Thie document in errer, ploose
notlly the saridey rnmedialely and destroy tha briginal,
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EAX MEADER 1:  SELECT AGENTS #ROGRAM 4047182096
FAX HEABER 2:

TRANSMITTED/STORED APK. 13, 2007 2:31PM
FILE MODE OPTION ADORESS RESULT PAGE
Y688 MEMORY Tx 979 862 3176 0%, N2
)
--—-u---u;-;-.—-\-..‘.m_—l-.,-e ——————————————————————————— A e A i D ot B o e e e O - o
LD oYk QB NoR sy
F3 0888000 an wime van B30 BR*Faca v e commay o
et
g DREMARTNVIENT O FREALTE AND 'H“CJMA\N\ BERVICES Fublio Heulth Sewvigs
“‘w,,wm § ' ’ Contarn dor Diroass Goreil

and Provention (D)
Arforma GA 20353

April 13, 2007

Richord Bwing, Roespintible Offoinl

Toxas A% M Uniyersity Regloteation HC 200606050485y
1300 Revcorch Parkomny, Sulte 2180, TAML 11 a5
Colliege Starton, T 77849.1183

Foxl (979) BE2-F1VE

Subleet: 42 CERR. § 73.19 Wotification of thedt, joas, o telousa)
' Drenw Dy, Bwing: .

This'is to etknervlpdge tho rebeipt nf the APHIS/CDO Form, 3 (Rapsort of Thef}, Loks, or Roloase of
Seleot Agonts ansd Toxins)y from Taxws Al bl Universivy dnied April 11, 2007 thet reported an
Spoupationnl cXposire tr Briaells, Bazsd isen The roview of tHe repore, the Crmrets for Divsase
Canttel pnd Prévention, (S, bividion of Splect Agtmik and Toxine (DSAT) hus edditionsl
Questions:

> 1. Pleuge provide a copy of the modich] swevelllande plan and describe how the follow up was
contiveted an A renult of the incidant,

3. Plonseprovide oll cooupationnl] héalth rooords reripiing to ¥he oxpossd sadividusle and anye
Individeals that have presantor] Awvigh 5Ymploms segoednted witk ¢ possinle TXROLLce Lo
Coxielln, Brucella. ©r Mycebdoiayrinm b iy,
Ploure prordde déonmentaticn i regardy to the xiqld axsessmiont thot was Pproformed for worle
witly Brgecalle. .
Plenge desorlbe the deoontumisatidn provedures nabd fo1 the pxrgasl chumber fad uny
middifcatlons incorpomted to these preced\mes a3 o posuit of (s moidemnt.
Plabge provide all standard Operathion proceourey (SOR nud Sertific stion domumonts ag it
rolétes (o the aoroeol fhamber, )
Fleabe provide & surumnty of events that geoursmed with ghle incident tuelyding the foilowauy
Toviewy that yor ety sopdivetod tor assiie that aoy oilter sigyllar invidents do not oopturod.

S R

03

Plegge provide accoss loge Toy Roam and vl koorne, were ek with Brverlla e
gcztﬁnrmcd. :

noe exploin How your incident Feoponao play, suetyity plan, end bioenfety plun hive been
modified a5 o result o5 this ineldent,

Thila dotimedit b Iunguo me'he, Oxbitratvy \;&b ot tho rauipts digh) SEMES ABOk, T oy oontuin domaitve Informaiah et Ik noloetng, pHwlagrg.
Sroeafloanilil, and it should pfl be cinlsfiinted, olybioutnn, of boptda (v PRIESNS Rol gutitabd fo meive such lpdteprinion. If you sra hal thin
gl Wciplonl(a), sny disedminalini. dmmbugm, I dopying.ia virpolty Broflolien, IF you BAAK wouy hawva reenlvgd this documaht In gpor, ptaass
=il Yie et hnmodiutaly el Soatroy U aiijimg),
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S
g; (: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTE AMD HUMAN SERVICES Pubdie Mealih Sereive
" Centars for Disagse Congl
Y, . . \ o
“:72 “ee ond Provemicn s COC)
v, Atflanig GA 50313
. P
To: Richard B. Ewiag, Respansibrle Offisinl (R, 0,)
Wice Presidont for Resvarch
Texas A&M University
1112 TAML]
Coliege Station, TX 77843-1112
FAX: (479)843-1855
From: Centers for Dispase Control and Prevention, Division of Select Ageaty and Toxing
Dato: June 7, 2006
Re: Facllity laspertion Repovt Response: Texes A&M Ufifeorsty

Thank you for your tuspsction rapart respooses dated Wuy 4, 2006 ang Way 13, 2006 1o tha deficiencies |isted in the
report from the Febrisdyy 22-24, 2006 jnspeation of yaur fatility. Pleasesubmit ydditonal information wits
sippotting documentalion, by yoted bulotv, by Tuhe 13, 20054

Dbshrvaliow §

Requirement: An individual ac entity retuired to vogistor uadur this part must develop and implement 4 writiey
bigsalety plan that is comuignsurate witli the risk of the ugent oy voxin, given its infended use, The biosafety plon
nust comain sufficient information and documentation te deseribe tho blosefery and containment procedures, [42

rig -

CER 71.12(n)) S

" Observation: P) Samuel’s and Tesh's biosaety plany did oot contain sufficient site spdeific information and .
documsiitation to describe the bibsafely und contsinmient protedurss for werk with select aftervs in laborafory suiie
420. Please provide docuroedtation that sddipssss this requirement.

Eatity Ruspanse: Tesh-Ne experiments tilizing the sefact ageat E. eoli DHSelpha(pCES- 142} are earmied oyt in
the B3 safre, Raomn is vsed W store (e agenr dnd the registration has been amended o vefleet this. Al wark
oo the ajent is carriod wat in Room Pl Swnvel's plan has bee npdated 4nd Included in Aggendix D,

CDC Bospunsy: Pleass provide upgiaied documentation that Bt Samuel's biogafety plon inctudes, oither by
inclusion or refererce, alt of the standard BSL-1 mitrabiolsgica) procslces 24 utlined in “Biosalety in
Microbiologivel and Biomedivel Labovatoles™ 4™ ed p, 27-23.

QObservotipn 17

e e ¥ . 3 , .
Requirement: The plan must bt reyiewed annvirtly 'sid revised as aesessary, Drills orexertises must by conducted
ot least annually o test und evaluats the effsctiveness oPtho plan, The plan rinst be Yeviewed and revised, ay
nocessacy, afler ahy drill or exerise ane after ory incident. (42 CHR 73.14 {d))

Observytion: The antity ncident respoist plan provided o inspectors was not dated. Although the plan
dacuinentation indicutes that & will be reviewed and revised angyatly, there was na sizroiture page or othtr method
to document review. The plan state (hat blannual grercists 4o train response porsonnel and evaluuts the adequocy
of the plan woudd be corducred but theee wus no evidence of an exerclsc being vompleted. The incident respomise
platy template used by the principal investigators did nol include 3 provision fov dritls or exercises 1o be conducted ot
feast snuually. Please provide ducuimeptation to nddress thess requiremaits,

Uptity Respouse: "The entity response plan (cisis managanigot plan) reviowed by the inspoction team was 8 copy
of information contained by our webisite A signed and. dused couy is retached, [See AppeogisLiheaiancidens
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Pyt 2 )
Tacilisy laspection Report: Tesas AdM Universily

response plow template, (o be vsed by afl principal investigators, nos igelotes a provis ion for drills or exercises to
b canducied at least annuelly, and is artached. [$ee Appendix E) LN

-
)

CPC Response: The entily brisis management, plan (CMP) stotes that the CMP shalk be reviewed anpually and
modified a5 necessary. It also siales that biamuml exertisos shall be held to train Tesponse hmrsopnet and evalyate
the adegaricy of the CMP. The sntity crins munagerent.pisn submittad to COC on Muy 15, 2006 is sigried alig
dafed i1 March 2003, The CMP packet does tontnin 2 “rocord of changes” lag aoting updates 1 the plas from 2004
and 3005 hot it is not cluar that 1155 i5 3 eview or that tese changes have been approved ly management.

Pleass provide dbctmentstion that thid phan hitis been reviewed annvally us steted. Ploase aise provide i expmple
of & report of & biannua] hersise 2ompleted to evalagte the adegpacy of the CMP and train respane personnel,

Observirlon 26

Reqifrement: Bivlogicot safety cabiness ab8 olker physical contaiment deviges 806 usad whensver canducting
preveduces with o potential for cresting aerosols. These Inelude regtopdy of infected animals, harvesting of ssues
or fuids frolw infested dnimals. o cggs, or intranasul inoaulakion of animals. A1 BSL-3 all werk shduld be done ina
primpry baerier, otherwise vdspiraters should bt worg by persannel [n the roow. {BMBL., p. 66, C())

Observation: Laburatory mem the 3 “yilding containg 20 atrobization chamber used by P\ Ficht for
work ith seleet agent. There wiws ne SOPs available for rsview by inspectors to tnsure appropriale safesy
precaurions have beea esublished for thiy prodedure. Please provide documentation that this departure has been
addressed.

?

Eutily Response: SOP'; for the aerolization chapaber gtk now In plase, (See Appendix 1]

CDC Reyponse: As disewssed turing the Febtuary 32-24 Inspestion, it wes stated that Principa} Tavestigutor Fisht
weuld be performing aerosol wark with select agents. Pleass by eminded that 42 GER 73.7 states that prior i
thauges in The activities involving siy Selbot agents or toxins [ive certificts af repistration must be amended by the
entity to include thay work. Peior 1o the work being approved by thie Select Agent Frograw, staddabd operating
procedures regarding tHe semeol chaflenge will need to be subtined 1o addrsds the following additiogal issues:
1) Floase deseribe the meshiuism used to ensure that efiter the aerosof procidire, there 18 no vesidual select
agenst remiiniog on tha animal suefags.
2)  Are there any Ixboralnry aiv sampling procedures by verity no equiprient leaks?
3)  How dous the faborutarian kaow the aebufizer is functivuing properly and not lesking?
" 4) Is the HEPA filtravion system for aceolizer equipmant cerlificd?
) B the mistoisolelor cuge filyation system certified?
6) Hus it beedi delermined how many air ehengeshavr if wkes to repiave infeced particles afier eseh ryn?
7 Ave fhe animals anassthetized-prior ve reawsler back lo the microsclatr tages? L rol, describe the
proeedury i(Lanimuis egeape. Begerike the procedire for anima) bites or serarohas, ,
8} Pletst provids more detail on the ulouning of the chambier t &odurs that the worker is nol ¢xpased 0 any
agent during the clenning process,
9) I3 there any alr sumpling of the changber after cieaning? )
10) EHow has it been detennined that dipping the prabs i 10% bleagk provides adequale conlan time for
decomtamination? N .
R § .
Based upun review of Amendinent #29968, it is e Select Agent Projtam's wnderstanding thar Prineipal
favestipator Samutel is cliwundy approved to perfonm desolization work with Coxlndle bumefii, Please provida
chacificariont of the current status of thiy work inehuding how the azerosm pracadure is being conducted.

Observation 38

Requivement: HEPA filtered exiaust air from u Class [f biosafity rabilidt can be recirculated into the animal room
if'the cabirer s 1espd and certified al least anauglly. When exbaust pir fram Class 11 cabinets s 10 by discharged t
the cutside (hroegh thy buiiding exlianst alr, yyston, the cabinets must be connecied in maaner thit 4voids pny
imerference with the air balunee of thie gabinet pr the Bhilding exhaust syswm. When Class (11 biglugical sufety

unbinels are usetl, they shouid be diccerly camrecied & U exhaust gystom. Jf Class U1 cabinets are congeered 16 e
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Diane ¥. vartio, Loay Inspeciar
Select Agenl Pronrun
e Department of Health and Human, Servicey
Cenrers Tor Digease Control and Prevengion {CHCY
1600 Clifton Road N.E., 48 570
Atlarta, Georgia 30333

e RE: FACILITY INSPECTION REFORT ~ TEXAS A & M UNTVERSIIY

v , ey Mrs. Martin:

We aie i rpceipt of sour {eree, diyted More

e thirdng the Febroary 15 - 18, 2005 Cpe

T e The Uuiversdy has careful)
s e Attechnieny 1-4-05.

h 25, 2003, detiling the absersytions wmady
Faciiity Ispection for Texus A & M Universiy.
¥ roviewed Lhe observigioss wdl offers il camnens wthin

JE yora require additiona information or blaibicntion on i conments coltuined withfy the
A e attecluwnent, please foyl (roe to contact Angelia Raines, Research Complinnee Dirselor, in
my office 2t 979/847.9362 vy o ines@vomouil iy edu.

We upprogiate sout contingad supporl and guidmes ney chmpl

et igsuas in the DDC
Seleet Apent Pr .
: At g Toiab fAdh Unlveraty
s _ CzOFH 1438144
Respectlifly submited, cooain

j 2 1w FaciHpy inmspwetion Repunt
ok B 1‘.Wi‘rigl Rusponss (vig ril}
Revpansibie O7ficia)

O%M <§:, @Zf | ot

Tatal #of Pages: -
z Attaehment 1
= .
ﬁé xel D Roben M. Gates
N President . .
oo RotslvadiGararatad:
kit . . 251 116:27 ARt .
A D, Dxavid B. Prive I”if’g‘i:
A e Exceptive Yice Bresdent und Prosos| e a0g )
G A : CANE
Yo LY Q_':; :3- ) R . d
Wl = Dy, Fuller . B ""‘“"jm:"e v
1) y A A . “ .
o 5{@ g Assacine Vioe President for Resenrch Paui Johnson
Coa O .

FOR DEFICHL USE Grdly
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/}7
e 13, Reaquiement: To apply for & certificate of regrsiration an entity mugL in accordanee wim § ’)3’_.21, sub

information requested to the HES Secratary or the USha Secrary ag Ypesified in the Fagsatration appli
pockage (COC Forfig 0I319). Inf i ' ‘
be ¢hpibie 1o conduct deliviting onder this part. Mip;,

mehiding building and vaom ind
be stored or ugeg, [42 CPR 73,7

on Tite ui the CDO Stlegt Ageny
include this adged equipment.

Secretary in the Epplication for the
of indivigaals Appreved under § 7
© app

T

<oe Observarinn.
Equipment gng Striehures have been added g

Po20/20

~&03

floor plns for euch boflding gpd Toom, where eagh seface AFEN o toxan wilj

(b)2)iti))

Floar plang

Propram do npt mpd

|l Pl

TAMY Contiment;
ldg, Y

v -1——..._-'_““"'—'--—.“.\,.,,,_"-—-‘..\
s, Are purmently uttlized for research

ot involving sefpet 2enls but sre obcagfons ly

iFied Lo atlow for thiy tYpe of research 1o gecuy

Al the time of inspeetion, py SBAT work was
SCCUIg in 2uy of te buildipys.

When selger REN are in vse, oy butldingy honsing
the selest UEEATE A refurned 1y the arigina} design
{larys agimg) stalls) as were viewed in

vand identicy) to the flow
s onfile at CHC Priot to work with SBATSs,
Wil be rerumed to

the origina) Pesign ap MOV on the fipgr Plang

| submritted to coe.

tinent was grantoq, The Responsibile Official must Prompily abtify the g
e With § 73,21, if g ¢hange oceurg jp, aty tilonwstion submmitted {q the Reey
or amendmerty. Thi includes maditications ta the |igg
3.8, changes i areg of worl, or Thanges in Pratecsls g objeatives of ghdies,

certificate af registratipn

ly for an amendment (o p certificaty o regigtption
dctivities or lovationy, apn EBHlY mpes obiain the telbvant

submit the information requested
prekage must be sitbrnitted to the

COC Observation: | .
for P Taolis

Styndard optratiog procedurog
identified recombinan( wutihintie i

with a selet 2gent. The PY's statemont ol work

froin the registration diy not Include thix

informution.
e

in the Package 1o the 3

sistance work

15. Reguiremeny: Persormel wagh their langds after hand]

before leaving the apiinyg) facifity.

ntes

(BMBL, p-64, A(10)]

i of work 4s considercd i {he Iuture, ap AMendment
to update the cyreny registatlon for PJ Tyglis wil}
bre sbmitied fo e CDE,

10 add sedect agents or oxing or 19 ehinge spreifiod
portian ef the regigiralion application racksge and
Zency tihat jruped fhe cettificale pf Tegistration. The
appripriate address pecifid 1 the package, [47 ey 73.7 ()]
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